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Corporate Information
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Board of Directors
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7/F New Trend Centre

704 Prince Edward Road East

San Po Kong

Kowloon

Hong Kong

Company Secretary
Tsoi Ho Yin

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2021

G

AT

$81% (ER)
CECIEEIE S o))
P -

BER

BT EE
Charles E. Chapman
RIERE
HAKER

HHRERE
2R (ERE)
Charles E. Chapman
HAKER

W% B &
REF(EH)
B

ERY
RUZEE

HRlE(EF)
Charles E. Chapman

R

w1 3
Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

F R
BB
BE
¥
K F B R T0455
R TEmERLIE

K&
SOEE



Corporate Information
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Group Structure
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Financial Highlights
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Major Financial Indicators and Ratios
FRMBRER LR

For the year ended 31st March

HE=A=1t—RHILFE

% changes

2021 2020 increase (decrease)
—E_—F —E-THF BOLLES)
HK$'000 HK$'000 %2 OR)
FHET FET
Operating results REXE
Revenue e 456,369 461,245 (1.1)
Gross profit EF 109,853 102,631 7.0
Operating profit gyl 23,239 5,132 352.8
Net profit/(loss) #HF(E518) F 5 18,589 (3,249) 672.1
HK cents HK cents %
A4l Rl
Per share data BREHR
Earnings/(loss) per share FREF(EEB) (2.9) 310.3
Total dividend per share FARAENR B 1.0 -
Net assets per share FIREEFE 70.7 22.2
HK$'000 HK$'000 %
FHExT FHT
Financial position B Rk
Total assets BEME 334,479 306,355 9.2
Net assets BESE 172,875 141,484 22.2
Financial ratio B 7% b R
Current ratio (Times) BN R (fF) 1.6 18.8
Quick ratio (Times) RENER(fF) 0.6 16.7
Gross margin (%) EFIZR(%) 22.3% 1.8
Net gearing ratio (%) FEEBGELE%) 50.4% (14.9)
Days %
H
Turnover ratio =R
Inventory turnover FEEE 169 95
Debtors turnover JE U AR R 39 10.3
Creditors turnover FEfTBR A & 30 20.0
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Financial Highlights
AP 42

For the year ended 31st March &= = A=+—HILF/E

Revenue by Geographical Segments (by %)  Revenue by Business Segments (by %)
e [ o3 38 2 Wik (3 4 BB ) Y EH M Wtk (¥ 4 B EOR)

A Hong Kong &% ) 53% A Electronic and Electrical Trading Business &F * ERICIHFE =¥/ 65%
A Asia Pacific (other than Hong Kong) 25 At (& #&RRAM) 20% A Computer Business S 27 21%
A South Africa FI3F 24% A Cosmetic and Online Retail Business 1ttt K 49 - T 7% 14%
A Europe EUM 2%
A Others Hfthith[@ 1%
Revenue Profit (Loss) Attributable to Shareholders
L& e S I A 6 A (s )
HK$ in million HK$ in million
AEET BAEBT
1500 25
20
1,200 15 122
10 &
900 5
628 0
547 4
0 & 0 Y9 ag a6 5 ny ! v
| | & 2 0 AN
300 '
| | 15 L
0 -20 (17.1)

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2007 2018 2019 2020 2021
Shareholders’ Equity Earnings (Loss) per Share - Basic
Jit 3R HE i BB (EH) — B
HK$ in million HK cents
HEBT Pl 6.1

4
200
4
159 3
160 PN 142 2
& 125 g]
P a .
120 1}\5 ; ! '
3 (.88 4
80 a ¥ (286)
® (3.84)
0 7
8 L 4
0 _1-8 (8.57)
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

06 Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2021



CEOQ’s Statement
AT BRI

Financial Results

For the financial year ended 31st March 2021, the Group recorded a
turnover of around HK$456 million, representing a decrease of about
1.1% from approximately HK$461 million recorded in the last year. Gross
profit increased by about 6.8% from approximately HK$103 million in
the last year to around HK$110 million this year, while the gross profit
margin increased by about 1.8% from 22.3% to 24.1%. The Group recorded
an operating profit of approximately HK$23 million (31st March 2020:
approximately HK$5.1 million). The profit attributable to shareholders was
approximately HK$12.2 million (31st March 2020: loss of approximately
HK$5.7 million). This represented earnings per share of around HK$0.061
(loss per share of around HK$0.029 as at 31st March 2020). The Board
has resolved that subject to the approval of the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, a final dividend
of HK$0.5 cent per ordinary share shall be declared for the year ended
31st March 2021, totally HK$1 million to the shareholders whose names
appeared on the register of members of the Company on 20th August 2021.
The final dividend, if approved, is expected to be paid on 3rd September
2021.

During the year under review, the Group continued to focus on its three
core business operations, namely: (1) the distribution of electronic
components, electrical components and equipment under the brand of
mosicon (the “Electronic and Electrical Trading Business”); (2) the Computer
Business which includes (i) the retail sales of computer products and
smartphone accessories under the brand of L=VideoCom (the “Computer
Retail Business”) and (ii) the distribution of computer products and
consumer products under the brand of “l@ (the “Computer Distribution

Business”); and (3) the Cosmetic and Online Retail Business mainly under

turnover derived from the Electronic and Electrical Trading Business
increased approximately 2.1% to about HK$293 million from
approximately HK$287 million in the last year. Turnover from the
Computer Business remained at about HK§97 million. Turnover from
Cosmetic and Online Retail Business decreased 14.3% to about HK$66
million from approximately HK$77 million in the last year.
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CEOQO’s Statement
AT B AR

For the financial year ended 31st March 2021, the Group’s total operating
expenses decreased by about 3% to around HK$98 million (31st March
2020: about HK$101 million), among which the distribution and selling
expenses were approximately HK$34 million which have decreased by
about 5.6% from HK$36 million recorded in the last year. During the year
under review, the general and administrative expenses decreased by about
1.5% to around HK$64 million (31st March 2020: about HK$65 million). As
at 31st March 2021, the headcount for the Electronic and Electrical Trading
Business increased from 306 full-time employees last year by about 2% to
312 full-time employees this year while the headcount for the Computer
Business increased from 48 full-time employees last year by about 6.3%
to 51 full-time employees this year and the headcount for Cosmetic and
Online Retail Business decreased from 22 full-time employees last year
by about 18.2% to 18 full-time employees this year. Meanwhile, finance
cost for the year under review decreased by about 25% to approximately
HK$2.7 million (31st March 2020: approximately HK$3.6 million).
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CEOQ’s Statement
AT BRI

The largest components
online platform e

Development Strategy and Outlook

Looking ahead to 2021, the global economy is expected to recover
gradually with the availability of COVID-19 vaccines and stimulation fiscal
policy adopted by large economies, though persistent outbreaks and the
mutation of the virus cause uncertainties.

The Group is optimistic about the Electronic and Electrical Trading
Business. The supply of electronic components is in serious shortage
while the demand is ramping up. It is expected that such supply-demand
imbalance will persist in the near future. Manufacturers are actively
placing purchase orders to maintain enough storage for productions. The
price of integrated circuits has been increasing. Also, one of our main
subsidiaries in South Africa engaging in the distribution of electronic
components, was adversely impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic, the
Group believes that its business performance will return to the pre-
COVID-19 level provided that there will be no stringent lockdown. In
addition, Swan has established its reputation in the South Africa market.
Considerable growth is expected in the coming financial years.

Concerning the computer business, the outbreak of COVID-19 accelerated
the work-from-home and distance learning trend. The Group expects that
the demand for computer and mobile accessories will remain strong and
stable. We will continue to explore distinctive products and introduce new
brands to maintain the market share of the computer distribution business
in the local market. Also, with regard to the computer retail business, the
Group will continue to improve its marketing strategies to increase its
market presence through social media network.

in South Africa
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CEOQO’s Statement
AT B AR

The cosmetic retail business is under pressure as the COVID-19 pandemic
situation is still unstable. The social distancing restriction and the ‘mask
order’ are not expected to be lifted in Hong Kong shortly. The Group
will continue to monitor the situation and tailor its strategies flexibly to
achieve a turnaround. Meanwhile, our online business recorded growth in
the last financial year. With the increasing popularity of online shopping,
the Group will continue to devote resources in the social media marketing
with a view to drive sales.

Appreciation

| ' would like to thank our management team and all our staff members
for their effort and significant contribution to the Group during the past
year. In addition, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our
shareholders, institutional investors, customers, bankers and business
partners for their continuous support and confidence in the Group.

By order of the Board
Yeung Man Yi, Beryl
Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29th June 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

O P i S S A

Business Review
During the year under review, the Group operated in three core business
operations, namely: (1) the distribution of electronic components,
electrical components and equipments under the brand of meseon (the
“Electronic and Electrical Trading Business”); (2) the Computer Business
which includes (i) the retail sales of computer products and smartphone
accessories under the brand of

ppppp

and (3) the Cosmetic Business and Online Retail Business mainly under
the brand of WiSh‘,h! and @ (“Cosmetic and Online Retail Business”).
The Electronic and Electrical Trading Business, the Computer Business and
the Cosmetic and Online Retail Business accounted for approximately
64.4% and 21.3% and 14.3% of the Group's total turnover respectively for
the year under review.

By analysis on the three core business operations, the gross profit margin
of the Electronic and Electrical Trading Business, the Computer Business
and the Cosmetic and Online Retail Business were approximately 24.6%,
21.5% and 25.7% respectively for the year ended 31st March 2021 (31st
March 2020: approximately 21.6%, 21.6% and 25.4%).

The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic brought much of the economic
activities to a halt in the year 2020. In response, governments around the
world provided financial reliefs to businesses and individual. The Group
was granted government subsidies to overcome adversity during the year.

Electronic and Electrical Trading Business

Hong Kong

Electronic and Electrical Trading Business is the primary contributor to the
Group's revenue during the year and recorded revenue of approximately
HK$293 million as compared with that of approximately HK$287 million
recorded in the last year, representing an increase of approximately
2.1%. In response to the spread of COVID-19 pandemic, many countries
around the world implemented restrictions on cross border activities and
social distance, which caused severe damage to the global economy.
Electronic and Electrical Trading Business in Hong Kong was inevitably
hit. In particular, purchase orders of customers from the toy manufacturing
industries decreased remarkably. While in the second half of the year, the
number of purchases orders rebounded along with the recovery of global
business activities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

o P i S S A

Overseas

The aggregate turnover of all of the Group’s overseas subsidiaries was
approximately HK$136 million for the year ended 31st March 2021,
representing an overall increase of approximately 1.5% as compared with
that of approximately HK$134 million recorded in the last year.

The Group's subsidiaries in South Africa recorded turnover of
approximately HK$109 million for the year ended 31st March 2021,
representing an increase of about 10.1% from approximately HK$99
million last year. In the first quarter, South Africa implemented a stringent
lockdown for around 50 days in response to the outbreak of COVID-19.
The operation of one of our main subsidiaries engaging in electronic
components trading business was almost suspended during that period.
On the other hand, our subsidiaries engaging in electrical components
distribution, which is considered as essential business, was less impacted
by the lockdown. Business activities gradually resumed as the restrictions
imposed by the governments to control the COVID-19 pandemic were
relaxed in the second half of the year. With the contribution of our lately
acquired subsidiary on 1st February 2020, the electrical components
distribution business continued to grow rapidly and lead to an overall
increase in revenue derived from South Africa.

In terms of geographical segments, the turnover from Hong Kong, the
Asia Pacific region (other than Hong Kong), South Africa, Europe and
other regions accounted for about 52.8%, 20.7%, 24%, 2% and 0.5%
respectively of the Group's total turnover during the year under review.

Computer Business

Computer Retail Business

For the year ended 31st March 2021, the Computer Retail Business
recorded a turnover of approximately HK$25 million (31st March 2020:
approximately HK$23 million), representing an increase of about 8.7%. It
was a challenging year for most retailing business in Hong Kong. However,
unexpectedly, the demand for computer products and accessories surged
during the year due to the work-from-home arrangement and distance
learning.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2021

#hb
AEBEBIMBRANBE-_T _—F=H
=T BIEFEES ifﬁ'“%%ﬂ’]*%_F/\E%
B BREFH-E=THAEEELERB LAY
1.5% °

BE_Z-_—F=A=+—HILFE A%£EH
FHBRARABRGEEEN—RBTNAEET
REFONTNLAEEETEMN01% > £F—
FE - BEFREH09ENEESHOBREERT
ARABORK BRI B S - RPIEP—HREE
THEZEBO T EMBRRRZABETF =
Xom—E BAEERTHOIHEOMER
AWBERVERY  EHHBARIINPZER

e T HF - BEEBUT AEHI2019EMRBE SR
RIEMEMARGINE - LEEEZHIRE - £
ﬁﬁ?kwfjfji A—B#HRENHRBA

AMER T - ERTHDEEBERERBIERE
BHR AR KSRGS ERBIEE

BEDE B BwAME(REEEE) @
I BMEREMEENREBEEE DR AEELR
BBEEEEM52.8% ~ 20.7%  24% ~ 2% 520.5% ©

U ES
CES S 2

BE_Z_—F=-A=+—HILFE BEKZT
EXBHRBEXBRN_THEEATL(ZZ=F
F=ZA=1+—8: %@_?:EF%}%T_E) t%”]
87% ° HEBABMO TEXEBM S im Pk

B —F o A - HFEHAZE - EEECE%IT’E
MEESENLY: - FREMERREHFIFR
g o



Management Discussion and Analysis

O P i S S A

Computer Distribution Business

For the year ended 31st March 2021, the turnover of the Computer
Distribution Business recorded a decrease of about 2.7% to approximately
HK$72 million (31st March 2020: approximately HK$74 million). The
decrease was mainly attributed to the fierce market competition. In
response, the Group continued to explore the business opportunities for
the distributorship of professional computer and accessories brand. Among
the computer brands we distributed, the brand MEC is well recognised in
the market and becomes one of the core brands.

Cosmetic Business and Online Business

During the year under review, the Cosmetic and Online Retail Business
recorded a turnover of approximately HK$66 million (31st March 2020:
approximately HK$77 million), representing a decrease of about 14.3%.
During the year, sales were hindered by the outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic. The gathering and social distance restrictions led to low retail
foot traffic in the city. The ‘mask rule’ imposed by the governments also
led to a lower demand for makeup cosmetic products. Conversely, the
COVID-19 pandemic accelerated the growth of e-commerce. Our online
business continued to record growth during the year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31st March 2021, the Group's cash and bank balances amounted
to approximately HK$34 million and the net current assets were
approximately HK$134 million. As at 31st March 2021, the current ratio
increased to approximately 1.9 (as at 31st March 2020: approximately 1.6).
Out of the Group's cash and bank balances, about 40% and 17% were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars respectively.
The balance of approximately 7.3%, 22.8%, 7.2%, 1.3%, 1.1% and 3.3%
of its total cash and bank balances was denominated in Chinese Renminbi,
South African Rand, Malaysia Ringgit, New Taiwan dollars, Singaporean
dollars and Euro respectively. The Group’s total assets amounted to
approximately HK$334 million (as at 31st March 2020: approximately
HK$306 million). Net assets per share amounted to approximately
HK$0.86 (as at 31st March 2020: approximately HK$0.71). Dividend and
basic earnings per share were approximately HK$0.01 and HK$0.061
respectively (as at 31st March 2020: approximately HK$0.01 and basic loss
per share HK$0.029 respectively).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

o P i S S A

The Group generally finance its operation by internally generated
resources and banking facilities provided by banks in Hong Kong. As at
31st March 2021, the Group had banking facilities for overdrafts, loans
and trade finance from banks totalling approximately HK$104 million (as at
31st March 2020: approximately HK$104 million), with an unused balance
of approximately HK$34 million (as at 31st March 2020: approximately
HK$36 million). The Directors believe that the Group’s existing financial
resources are sufficient to fulfill its current commitments and working
capital requirements.

Capital Structure

As at 31st March 2021, the total bank borrowings of the Group were
approximately HK$70 million (as at 31st March 2020: HK$68 million),
which were in the form of short-term bank loans (including short-term
loans and trade finance) for financing the daily business operations and
future development plans. The majority of the Group’s bank borrowings as
at 31st March 2021 were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. These short-
term loans and trade finance were secured by the Company’s corporate
guarantees of around HK$96 million (as at 31st March 2020: HK$96 million)
and the leasehold properties in Singapore and Portugal. During the year
under review, the Group’s borrowings bore interest at rates ranging from
2.1% to 9% per annum (as at 31st March 2020: ranging from 3.1% to 5.5%
per annum).

Gearing ratio

As at 31st March 2021, the Group’s gross borrowings repayable within one
year, amounted to approximately HK$95 million (as at 31st March 2020:
approximately HK$100 million). After deducting cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$34 million, the Group’s net borrowings amounted
to approximately HK$61 million (as at 31st March 2020: approximately
HK$71 million). The total equity as at 31st March 2021 was approximately
HK$173 million (as at 31st March 2020: approximately HK$141 million).
Accordingly, the Group’s net gearing ratio, based on net borrowings to
total equity, decreased to 35.5% (as at 31st March 2020: 50.4%).

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

O P i S S A

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates
Most of the Group’s transactions were denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
Chinese Renminbi and United States dollars. Given that the exchange rate
of Hong Kong dollars against Chinese Renminbi has been and is likely to
be under control and that the Hong Kong Government's policy of pegging
the Hong Kong dollars to the United States dollars remains in effect, the
Directors consider that the risk facing by the Group on foreign exchange
will remain minimal and no hedging or other alternative measures have
been undertaken by the Group. As at 31st March 2021, the Group had no
significant risk exposure pertaining to foreign exchange contracts, interest
rates, currency swaps, or other financial derivatives.

Charges on Assets

As at 31st March 2021, the properties with carrying value of approximately
HK$14 million have been pledged to secure the general banking facilities
granted to the Group's subsidiaries in Singapore and Portugal.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31st March 2021.

Employment, Training and Remuneration Policy
As at 31st March 2021, the Group had a total of 381 full-time employees
inclusive of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas subsidiaries. The Group
has developed its human resources policies and procedures based on the
performance, merits and market conditions. Remuneration packages are
normally reviewed on a regular basis. Apart from salary payments, other
staff benefits include provident fund contributions, medical insurance
coverage and performance-based bonuses (based on the Group's financial
results as well as individual performance).
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

5 TR A L

Executive Directors

Hung Kim Fung, Measure,

aged 60, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is the Chairman of the Company
(the "Chairman”). He obtained an Honorary Doctorate in Business
Administration from Newport University in the United States. Dr. Hung
has more than 40 years of experience in the electronics industry, and is
responsible for the Group's strategic planning and corporate policies.

Since 1995, Dr. Hung has been a member of the Executive Committee of
the Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association Limited (the “"HKEIA") and
was nominated as Honorary Vice-chairman of the HKEIA in 2015.

Dr. Hung is also a General Committee Member and the Group 20 Chairman
(Non-manufacturing Il: Trading (Hong Kong Trade Services Council)) of the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries and the Independent Manager of Chan
Sui Ki (La Salle) Primary School.

He was appointed by the City University of Hong Kong as Honorary
Chairman of the Advisory Committee of the Industry Co-operative
Education Centre, and served as a member of the Electronics and
Telecommunications Training Board (2013 — 2019), Information Technology
Training and Development (2015 — 2017) and Innovation and Technology
Training Board (2017 — 2019) of Vocational Training Council. Dr. Hung is
the husband of Ms. Yeung Man Yi Beryl, the deputy chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company. He is also the elder brother of Hung Ying
Fung, an executive director of the Company.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

R A U

Yeung Man Yi, Beryl,

aged 59, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is the Deputy Chairman (the “Deputy
Chairman”) and the Chief Executive Officer (the "CEQ”) of the Company.
With more than 40 years of experience in the electronics industry,
Ms. Yeung is responsible for the Group’s finance, administration and
internal control.

In 2004, Ms. Yeung was also made an Associate (Electronics Industry) by
The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong, in recognition of her
professional knowledge in electronics, extensive application of existing
and new technology, achievements and contributions to the industry. In
2006, Ms. Yeung obtained the Master Degree of Business Administration
from Lincoln University in the United States.

In recognition of her valuable experience and knowledge in the electronics
engineering industry, Ms. Yeung was invited to be the Adjunct Professor
in the Department of Electronic Engineering, City University of Hong Kong
(2014-2015) and Advisory Committee (2010—-2014) of Hong Kong Trade
Development Council Electronics/Electrical Appliances Industries. She is
the wife of the Chairman of the Company, Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and
the sister of an executive director of the Company, Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung,
Allix.

Hung Ying Fung,

aged 57, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is an executive director of the Company.
He is responsible for the management and both the computer and cosmetic
retail business development of the Group and has over 35 years of
experience in the electronics industry. In 2001, he was nominated as the
director of the Chamber of Hong Kong Computer Industry Company Limited.
Mr. Hung was nominated as an executive member of the Sham Shui Po
District Commerce and Industrial Liaison Committee (2021-2023). He is the
brother of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure.

Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix,

aged 58, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is an executive director of the Company.
Mr. Yeung is responsible for the management and business development
of the retail business in PRC and Asia Pacific region of the Group. He has
over 37 years of experience in the electronics and computer industry. He is
the brother of Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Charles E. Chapman,

aged 72, Independent Non-executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company. He is currently
the independent non-executive director of AV Concept Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 595) which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and a senior industry consultant for a number of overseas-based trade
fair organizers. He was the executive director of the HKEIA and managing
director of the HKEIA's subsidiary publishing company, the Hong Kong
Electronics Promotions Ltd. from May 1988 to June 2007 when he retired.
Prior to joining HKEIA, Mr. Chapman worked for 12 years as economics
editor at the Hong Kong Trade Development Council and for 8 years as
business editor in a local English-language newspaper.

Leung Wai Cheung,

aged 57, Independent Non-executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company. Dr. Leung is
a qualified accountant and chartered secretary with over 33 years of
experience in accounting, auditing and financial management. He holds
the Doctor of Philosophy degree in Forensic Accounting and Auditing, the
Doctor of Philosophy degree in Management, the Doctor of Education
degree in Educational Management, a Doctor of Business Administration
degree, a Master of Professional Accounting degree, a Postgraduate
Diploma in Corporate Administration, a Bachelor of Commerce degree
majoring in Accounting, and a Diploma in Forensic Accounting. He is
an associate member of each of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, CPA Australia, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators, the Hong Kong Institute Secretaries and the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales. Dr. Leung is also an adjunct lecturer of
the Hong Kong University (SPACE). He is the executive director of Bamboos
Heath Care Holdings Limited (Stock code: 2293).

Ku Wing Hong, Eric,

aged 65, Independent Non-executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company. He obtained an
Honorary Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences and a Diploma in Education
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1979 and 1985 respectively.
He joined De La Salle Secondary School, NT in 1981 and was appointed
Principal of the School in September 2004. He retired in August 2016 at
the age of 60. Mr. Ku has been the Vice-chairman of the Tai Po & North
District Secondary Schools Area Committee of Hong Kong Schools Sports
Federation (the “Federation”) and the Chairman in the Federation's Tai
Po & North District Competition Committee. He has also been the Vice-
chairman of the North District Secondary School Principals’ Association
and is currently a member of the Hong Kong Lasallian Education Council.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2021
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile
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Senior Management

Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho,

aged 63, Senior Management

has been an executive director of the Company from June 2013 to 31st
March 2016. Despite his resignation as an executive director of the
Company, he is the director of five subsidiaries of the Company, namely
Langa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited, MBM Properties (Proprietary)
Limited (formerly known as AP Electronics (Proprietary) Limited),
Mantech Electronics (Proprietary) Limited (“Mantech Electronics”),
Mobicon International Limited and Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited.
Mr. Moutinho has been appointed as an advisor to the Portuguese diaspora
by Portuguese World Council since February 2014.

Mr. Moutinho is responsible for the business operations of the Group in
South Africa and Portugal. He joined the Group in December 2001 when
Mantech Electronics was acquired by the Group and became an executive
director of the Company in June 2013. Mr. Moutinho obtained his national
certificate in Electronics from the University of Johannesburg (formerly
known as Technikon Witwatersrand) in 1982 and matriculated at the
Johanneshurg Technical College in South Africa in 1977. He is a qualified
electrical technician engineer.

Wan Lam Keng,

aged 58, Senior Management

is the senior business manager of the Group. Ms. Wan joined the Group
in June 1988 and has over 32 years of experience in retailing and trading
business. She is responsible for the Group’s Urgent Requirement Service
division. She is the wife of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix.

Tsoi Ho Yin,

aged 36, Senior Management

is the financial controller of the Group and the company secretary of the
Company. He is responsible for the financial management of the Group.
Mr. Tsoi is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. Mr. Tsoi joined the Group in September 2016. He has
more than 12 years of experience in auditing and accounting.
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Lam Sun Hung,

aged 52, Senior Management

is the marketing director of APower Holdings Limited. He obtained a
Master of Business Administration from University of Wales (Newport).
He has engaged in the IT industry for more than 34 years and has in depth
understanding on the market trend and market demand. He has earned
rich and solid experiences in the operation of products agentship and
distribution. He has developed MEC, a self-owned brand, for the Company,
leading the Group into household retail market with the self-owned brand.
In recent years, Mr. Lam has explored the import agency and wholesale
business of cosmetic products, supplying the products mainly to Hong Kong
and Macau markets. Mr. Lam joined the Group in April 2002 and is focusing
on the development of agent line product and solution services business.

Hung Lok Lam, Joyce,

aged 31, Senior Management

is the business development manager of Videocom Technology (HK)
Limited. Ms. Hung joined the Group in August 2011 and is responsible
for overseeing the product development and brand management of wishh!,
and merchandising and marketing wide range of cosmetic products for the
customers of the Group. Ms. Hung holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences
degree in Psychology from The University of Hong Kong. She is the
daughter of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, the
niece of Mr. Hung Ying Fung and the niece of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix.

Hung Lok Tin,

aged 30, Senior Management

is the business development manager of A Plus 2 Computer Limited.
Mr. Hung joined the Group in January 2013 and is responsible for
overseeing the product development, merchandising and brand management
of L=1VideoCom - Mr. Hung holds a Bachelor of Asia-Pacific Studies degree
from the Australian National University and he is the executive member of
the HKEIA. He is the son of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and Ms. Yeung
Man Yi, Beryl, the nephew of Mr. Hung Ying Fung and the nephew of Mr.
Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix.

Chooi Chow Sek, Jasmond,

aged 54, Senior Management

is the general manager of Mobicon-Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd. in
Malaysia and Mobicon-Remote Electronic Pte Ltd. in Singapore. He
graduated from Federal Institute of Technology in Malaysia with a Diploma
in Electronic Engineering. Mr. Chooi joined the Group in July 2001 and
has over 29 years of experience in distribution of electronic components
and test and measurement instruments. He is currently responsible for the
overall operation of these two companies covering Southeast Asia.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2021
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Corporate Governance Report
SR RO

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board is committed to principles of corporate governance practices
and procedures. The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize transparency, accountability and independence.

The Company has complied with the Code Provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during the year under review except for the
following deviations:

According to the Code Provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The
independent non-executive directors of the Company (the “INEDs") are not
appointed for specific terms but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company under Bye-law
111 of the Company's Bye-laws.

Code Provision A.4.2 of the Code provides that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. However, the Bye-laws of the
Company provides that the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman will not be
subject to retirement by rotation or be taken into account in determining
the number of directors to retire. As continuation of the services of the
Chairman and the Deputy Chairman is a key factor to the successful
implementation of any long term business plan, the Board believes
that present arrangement is most beneficial to the Company and the
shareholders as a whole.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own Securities Dealing Code on terms no
less exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Upon specific enquiry by the Company,
all directors have confirmed that they fully complied with the required
standard set out in the Securities Dealing Code throughout the year under
review.

Directors and Officers’ Indemnity

The Company continues to subscribe for an insurance policy to indemnify
the directors and senior management against any losses, claims, damages,
liabilities, expenses and any proceedings brought against them, arising
from the performance of his/her duties as director or senior management
(as the case may be) of the Company. The current policy has been renewed
and shall be under constant review.
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Board of Directors

The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management of the
business and affairs of the Group with the objective of enhancing share
value.

The Board comprises a total of seven directors, with four executive
directors, namely Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (Chairman), Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl (Deputy Chairman and CEQ), Mr. Hung Ying Fung, and Mr. Yeung
Kwok Leung, Allix and three INEDs, namely, Mr. Charles E. Chapman,
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric. One of the INEDs has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise, which is required by the Listing Rules. Ms. Yeung
Man Yi, Beryl is the wife of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure. She is also the
sister of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix. Mr. Hung Ying Fung is the brother of
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all INEDs meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.

The Board composition will be reviewed regularly to ensure that it has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Group. To enhance the standard of corporate
governance, the Company also adopted a board diversity policy on 29th
August 2013. The directors’ biographical information is set out on pages 16
to 20 of this annual report.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the approval and
monitoring of the Group’s long term and short term investments, business
strategies and annual budgets, evaluating the performance of the Group
and oversight of the management. One of the important roles of the
Chairman is to provide leadership to the Board such that the Board acts
in the best interests of the Group. The Chairman shall ensure that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed and approved by the Board before
execution. All directors have been consulted about any matters proposed
for inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman has delegated the responsibility
for drawing up the agenda for each Board meeting to the Company
Secretary. With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks
to ensure that all directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and adequate and reliable information is given to the Board in a
timely manner.

The CEO is responsible for the implementation of corporate goals, business
strategies and policies resolved by the Board from time to time. The
CEO assumes full accountability to the Board in respect of the Group's
operations.
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The Company Secretary shall convene a Board meeting at the request of
any one director and 14 days’ notice of Board meeting will be given to all
directors. The Company Secretary shall circulate the Board papers not less
than three days before the Board meeting to enable the directors to clearly
understand and make informed decisions on all matters to be raised,
discussed and resolved at the Board meetings. The Company Secretary
who is also the financial controller of the Group shall attend all regular
Board meetings to advise on corporate governance, statutory compliance,
accounting and financial matters when necessary. The directors shall have
full access to information on the Group and arrangement has been in place
to enable directors to obtain independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary. The Company Secretary shall prepare minutes and keep
records of matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board meetings.

Four regular Board meetings of the year under review were scheduled
in advance at approximately quarterly intervals; the other two Board
meetings had been convened in relation to the discussions of two
continued connected transactions pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The directors can attend meetings in person or by means of a
conference telephone or other communications facilities in accordance
with Bye-law 136 of the Company’s Bye-laws.

The senior management is responsible for the daily operations of the Group
under the leadership of the Board. To this end, the senior management has
to implement, follow up and monitor the business plans, internal control
and corporate governance practices developed by the Board.

Directors’ Training

Every director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company. The Company provides all members of the Board with monthly
updates on the Group’s performance and financial position.

During the year, the Company had arranged an in-house training session
to the directors on the implications of late disclosure of inside information
from recent cases. In addition, the directors had attended external courses,
conferences and luncheons organized by various organisations to further
enhance their capacities to carry out directors’ duties.

The directors also reviewed the monthly business and financial
updates and other reading materials provided to them concerning latest
developments in corporate governance practices and relevant legal and
regulatory developments.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

There is no specific term of the appointment of INEDs. However, they are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the provision of the Bye-laws
of the Company. This deviates from the Code Provision A.4.1 of the Code
which requires that non-executive directors be appointed for specific terms
subject to rotation and re-election by shareholders. The Board considers
that this current practice is fair and reasonable and does not intend to
change this practice at the moment.

According to Bye-law 111 of the Company’s Bye-laws, one-third of the
directors for the time being (excluding the Chairman and the Deputy
Chairman of the Board) shall retire from office by rotation at each annual
general meeting. Currently, two directors are subject to retirement by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

According to Bye-law 117 of the Company’s Bye-laws, the members may,
at any general meeting and by an ordinary resolution, remove a director
at any time before the expiration of his/her period of office provided that
the notice of any such meeting convened for the purpose of removing a
director shall contain a statement of the intention so to do and be served
on such director not less than 14 days before the meeting and at such
meeting, such director shall be entitled to be heard on the motion for his/
her removal.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) on 29th August 2013. The Company recognizes and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. The Board Diversity Policy aimed to set out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board.

In designing the Board's composition, Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
including:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

o} to review the Company's compliance with the Code and disclosure
in corporate governance reports.

Remuneration Committee and Directors’
Remuneration

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established on
20th February 2006 to assist the board of directors of the Company to
oversee the remuneration packages of and determine the remuneration
structure of the executive directors and senior management of the
Group. Its current members are Dr. Leung Wai Cheung, Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric. Dr. Leung is the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The terms of reference including the duties of
the Remuneration Committee have been posted on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website.

With effect from the fiscal year 2020/2021, the Remuneration Committee
adopted the management bonus package mechanism of executive directors
which provides that the aggregate amount of management bonuses
payable to all directors in respect of any financial year of the Company
shall not exceed (i) 5% of the net profits of the Group if the net profits
of the Group is HK$8 million or above but is less than HK$10 million;
and (ii) 10% of the net profits of the Group if the net profits of the Group
is HK$10 million or above. Furthermore, the Remuneration Committee
also approved to delegate the authority to the Chairman of the Group to
determine the distribution level on the management bonus payout to all
executive directors and each executive director shall entitle to not less
than 10% of the aggregate amount of the management bonuses.
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On 25th February 2021, the Remuneration Committee resolved that the
management bonus package mechanism of executive directors for the
fiscal year 2021/22 shall be maintained at same level as that for the fiscal
year 2020/21.

The following table lists out in bands the remuneration of the executive
directors and senior management whose names appear in the
“Directors’ and Senior Management's Profile” section for the year:

RIB-—F_"A-+hH " FHEEFFIARR
TR /R FUBERERTESERE
AHEARBIBSEZRIN "2 - —T——
FHBERENR—KF

TRILEI [EERSREREBHN ] —H2H
TEERERERBNRAFEZMAR

HK$ Number of persons
BT AE
500,001 — 1,000,000 2
1—-500,000 12
Total number of persons 48 A £ 14

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established on 28th
March 2012 to lead the process for the appointment of directors of
the Company. Its current members are Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure,
Mr. Charles E. Chapman and Dr. Leung Wai Cheung. Dr. Hung is the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee. The terms of reference including
the responsibilities of the Nomination Committee have been posted on the
Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.

The terms of reference including the duties of the Nomination Committee
was amended on 28th December 2018 and the amended version has been
posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange's website.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee adopted a policy for the nomination of the
directors (the “Nomination Policy”). According to the Nomination Policy,
the Nomination Committee will use the following non-exhaustive factors,
including reputation for integrity, accomplishment and experience,
commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest, the
Company's board diversity policy and the independence of the candidate
(in the case of independent non-executive Directors) as reference in
assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate. The Nomination
Committee shall call a meeting of the Nomination Committee and invite
nominations of candidates from Board members if any, for consideration
by the Nomination Committee prior to its meeting. The Nomination
Committee may also put forward candidates who are not nominated by
Board members. The Board shall have the ultimate responsibility and final
decision on all matters relating to its recommendation of candidates to
stand for election at any general meeting.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee held one

meeting. The minutes of the Nomination Committee meeting was tabled to
the Board for noting and for confirmation by the Board where appropriate.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company was established on 18th April 2001
to assist the Board in providing an independent review of the effectiveness
of the financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
system of the Company.

All members of the Audit Committee are the INEDs. One member has
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules. None of them is
employed by or otherwise affiliated with former or existing auditors of the
Company. The current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Charles E.
Chapman, Dr. Leung Wai Cheung and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric. Dr. Leung is
the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference including the duties of the Audit Committee was
amended on 28th December 2018 and the amended version has been
posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year under review. The
minutes of the Audit Committee meetings were tabled to the Board for
noting and for action by the Board where appropriate.

During the meetings held in the year under review, the Audit Committee
had performed the following work:

(i) reviewed annual results and the financial reports for the year
ended 31st March 2020 and the interim results and the financial
reports for the six months ended 30th September 2020;

(i) reviewed the findings and recommendations of the internal audit
on the operations and performance of the Group;

(iii) reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and ensured the Company to comply with the Listing Rules
and other statutory compliance;

(iv) reviewed the effectiveness of internal control and risk management
systems of the Group;

(v) reviewed the external auditors’ management letter and management's
response; and

(vi) reviewed and recommended for approval to the Board the 2020/2021
audit scope and auditors’ remuneration.
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Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy. Subject to any restrictions
under the Laws of Bermuda, the Bye-Laws of the Company and any
applicable laws, rules and regulations, the Company may declare dividend
according to the recommendation of the Board. The Company may in its full
discretion decide not to declare dividend due to various reasons, including
but not limited to maintaining or adjusting the capital structure and
reserving more capital to capture opportunities, etc. In deciding whether
to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board
shall take into account, inter alia:

(i) the general financial condition of the Group;

(ii) the Group's actual and future operations and liquidity position;

(i)~ the Group's expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans;

(iv) the Group's debt to equity ratios and the debt level;

(v) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group's lenders;

(vi) the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group;

(vii)  the shareholders’ and the investors' expectation and industry’s
norm;
(viii)  the general market conditions; and

(ix) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

Attendance of Individual Directors

The attendance of individual directors at the Board, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Annual General
Meeting during the year under review is set out in the table below.
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Number of meeting(s) attended/held in 2020/2021
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HE/BTEERE

Audit  Remuneration Nomination Annual
Committee Committee Committee General
Board Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting
Name of Director EEnE EZE8E BRZE8SE FWZEeeR RERZEE8E RREFAE
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure HelEEL 6/6 N/AT 8 A N/AiE A 1 1
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl BagrL 6/6 N/AT G F /1 N/ATRE R 11
Mr. Hung Ying Fung HRERE 6/6 N/ATRE R N/ATRiE A N/AT @R 17
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix BERLE 6/6 N/ATEHR N/ATiEH N/ATER Ik
Mr. Charles E. Chapman Charles E. ChapmanZt & 6/6 4/4 N/ATEA 1 1
Or. Leung Wai Cheung REHEL 6/6 4/4 /1 /1 11
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric BKEEE 6/6 4/4 i N/AREF il
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Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group.

As at 31st March 2021, the directors were not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, the directors have prepared the financial statements of the
Company on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 42 to 48
of this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office
will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited be re-appointed as the auditors of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31st March 2021, the remuneration paid to the
Company’s auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, is set out as
follows:
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and the review of their effectiveness. Such
systems are designed to identify, analyze, evaluate and mitigate risk
exposures that may impact the continued efficiency and effectiveness of
our operation or prevent it from achieving its business objectives.

The risk management process of the Group is coordinated and facilitated
by our compliance officer. The objectives of risk management are to, inter
alia, enhance the Company's governance and corporate management
processes as well as to safeguard the Group against unacceptable
levels of risks and losses. The risk management process of the Group
will involve, inter alia, (i) an annual risk identification exercise which
involves assessment of the consequence and likelihood of risks (including
documenting those of potentially high impact) and the development
and/or review of risk management plans for mitigating such risks; (ii)
testing of documented risk management procedures at approval intervals;
and (iii) providing our staff and other stakeholders appropriate and
reasonable access to relevant information and training in the area of risk
management.

Our internal control staff has performed an assessment on our internal
control systems including reviewing guidelines and policies which are
implemented through our operational process and the results of the same
has been reported to the Board. An internal audit function is set up to
examine key issues in relation to the financial and operational matters/
practices and to provide its findings and any recommendations for
improvement to the Audit Committee.

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating inside information,
procedures have been implemented by the Group to ensure that
unauthorized access and use of information are strictly prohibited.

During the year ended 31st March 2021, the Board, as supported by the
Audit Committee, our compliance officer and internal audit function,
reviewed the risk management and internal control systems, including the
financial, operational and compliance controls, for the mentioned period,
and considered that such systems are effective and adequate. The annual
review also covered the financial reporting and internal audit function and
staff qualifications, experiences and relevant resources in respect thereof.
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Investor Relations and Communications

The Company establishes different communication channels with
shareholders and investors: (i) the annual general meeting provides a
forum for shareholders to raise comments and exchange views with
the Board; (ii) updated company news and published announcements of
the Group are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company; and (iii) different means are opened to the shareholders and
investors for communication channel such as (a) by mail to the Company's
head office at 7/F, New Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East, San Po
Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong; (b) by telephone at (852) 2397 6628; or (c) by
fax at (852) 2397 0339.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Company's affairs. The Company Secretary
reports to the Chairman. From time to time, the Company Secretary advises
the Board on governance matters and ensures the board procedures,
applicable law, rules and regulations are followed. During the year under
review, the Company Secretary has confirmed that he has complied with
all the qualifications and training requirements under the Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ Right

(i) Procedures by which shareholders can convene a
Special General Meeting (the “SGM”)
The Board shall, on the requisition in writing of the shareholders of
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company upon
which all calls or other sums then due have been paid, forthwith
proceed to convene a SGM.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene the SGM, the requisitionists or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all
of them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after three months from the date of the
original deposit.
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(ii) Procedures for putting forward proposals at General
Meetings (the “GM”)
Shareholders can submit a written requisition to move a resolution
at GM. The number of shareholders shall represent not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders having
at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the GM, or who are
no less than 100 shareholders.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business
to be dealt with at the GM. It must also be signed by all of
the shareholders concerned and be deposited to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s office in Hong Kong at 7/F, New Trend
Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong not less than six weeks before the GM in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week before
the GM in case of any other requisition.

The request will be verified with the Company’s Share Registrars
and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board of Directors to
include the resolution in the agenda for the meeting provided
that the shareholders concerned have deposited a sum of
money reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
serving the notice of the resolution and circulating the statement
submitted by the shareholders concerned in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered shareholders.

(iii) Shareholders’ enquiries
Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to
the Board in writing with contact information of the requisitionists
and deposited to the Company Secretary at the Company’s office
in Hong Kong at 7/F, New Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road
East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Constitutional Documents

During the year under review, there has no change in the Company's
Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of Mobicon Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31st March 2021.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the trading and distribution of electronic
components, electrical components, equipment and computer products and
mobile accessories and trading of cosmetic products.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by business and
geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Business Review

A fair review of the business of the Group as required pursuant to
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong
Kong), is set out in the sections “CEQ’s Statement” on pages 7 to 10 and
“Business review” on pages 11 to 13, of this Annual Report respectively.
An analysis using financial key performance indicators, a discussion of the
Group’s environmental policies and performance, and its compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group as well as an account of the key relationships with its stakeholders
are set out in the sections “Five Year Financial Summary” on pages 147
and 148, “Revenue and Segment Information” on pages 96 to 102, and
“Major Customers and Suppliers” of this Report of the Directors on page
39 respectively. The environmental, social and governance report of the
Group will be published separately before the end of August 2021. The
above discussions form part of this Directors’ Report.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2021 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 49 and 50 respectively.

The directors declared an interim dividend of HK cent 0.5 per ordinary

share, totalling HK$1 million, which was paid on 6th January 2021,

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK cent 0.5 per
ordinary share, totalling HK$1 million for the year ended 31st March 2021.
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Closure of Register of Members

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 12th August
2021 to 17th August 2021, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be effected. In order to ascertain the right to attend
the annual general meeting, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company's branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Hong Kong Registrars Limited at its office situated
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 11th August 2021.
The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 23rd August
2021 to 25th August 2021, during which period no transfer of shares will
be effected, and the final dividend will be paid on 3rd September 2021. In
order to qualify for the final dividend, all completed share transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Hong Kong Registrars
Limited at the above address for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
20th August 2021.

Share Capital
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

Reserves
Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

Donations
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$21,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws
and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws in Bermuda.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the
Company's listed shares during the year ended 31st March 2021.

Directors
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors

Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (Chairman)

Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Hung Ying Fung

Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Charles E. Chapman

Dr. Leung Wai Cheung

Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric

Mr. Hung Ying Fung and Mr. Charles E. Chapman are required to retire
by rotation under the Company's bye-laws and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive directors of the Company (except Dr. Hung Kim Fung,
Measure who did not enter into any service contract with the Company)
has entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial fixed
term of three years commencing from 1st April 2001, and will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors who are proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.
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Share Option Scheme

On 8th August 2003, the Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the”"New Share Option Scheme”), pursuant to which the eligible persons
may be granted options to subscribe for shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) upon and subject to the terms and conditions of the rules of the
New Share Option Scheme. The New Share Option Scheme is in line with
current Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Since the adoption, no options have been granted under the New Share
Option Scheme up to the date of this report. The New Share Option
Scheme expired on 7th August 2013.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Equity and Debt Securities

As at 31st March 2021, the interests and short positions of each director
and chief executive of the Company and his/her associates in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SF0")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as
follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

Jih Jie i -

RZZZE=F/\ANB  ARERH—IAFNE
RerEnt 81 ([#r BT &) - Bt - ARAA
AR RE AR AT BAR A2 R S IR WA AR R
T REBRETAEERALTARBEARRKD
(TRt ) - FBRERA BT EBBBMARSMA
RARIES EMARR ERRDFITEZRT
HME °

HERAFTERE IR BEARERH - &
NEB BRI IR D IR AE - FIEAERT EIE
RZZE—=FN\ALBERW -

AR RATBON BRI A B A
it 77 Z B i

R-T-—#ZA=+—0 RAARSEERE
BIHABAREBEALRER AR
B (5E 3 R B % R E ) ([ 38 %% R BB 14071 )
XV 21 - MR REST - HELE
EHRADAIRBES RS FHIEI25FE
2Bz S RAE - REREES RN G
PIEXVERLET RO Bk EH BT AEBRTES
R HMIEETA(EEFR ) SITMEAATR
EBBATBAERA R (THRH ) 2 Rk
AMT -

A4y ) 4 i THI4EL0.109 7T 2 ¥ ik

Number of shares

R E
Long/short Personal Family Corporate

Name of Director position interests interests interests Percentage
EEnE BE KR BA R RXEER DRER B
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure Long = 90,000,000 90,000,000 45%
HtRlEiE L TR {Note a)

(Fff5Ea)
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl Long = 90,000,000 90,000,000 45%
HEER L "R (Note a)

(FMi3ta)
Mr. Hung Ying Fung Long 26,990,000 S S 13.50%
HEE R A ey
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix Long = 30,000,000 30,000,000 15%
HEREE R (Note b)

(F43ED)
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Equity and Debt Securities (continued)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

(continued)
Notes:
(a) These shares are held by M2B Holding Limited, a company owned as to 50% by Dr.

Hung Kim Fung, Measure and the remaining 50% by his wife, Ms. Yeung Man Yi,
Beryl. Accordingly, Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl were
deemed to be interested in 90,000,000 shares of the Company under SFQ. Dr. Hung
Kim Fung, Measure and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl were in respect of the same
interest and duplicated each other.

(b) These shares are held by Bestmark Management Limited, a company owned as to
50% by Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix and the remaining 50% by his wife, Ms. Wan
Lam Keng. Accordingly, Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix and Ms. Wan Lam Keng were
deemed to be interested in 30,000,000 shares of the Company under SFO. The
interests of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix and Ms. Wan Lam Keng were in respect of
the same interest and duplicated each other.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

During the year ended 31st March 2021, the Company had adopted a Code
of Conduct regarding directors’ transactions in securities of the Company
on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model
Code under Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made all reasonable
enquires with the directors of the Company, the Company was of the view
that the directors had complied with the said Code of Conduct throughout
the year.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report and Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Interests of Substantial Shareholders and Other
Persons in the Share Capital of the Company

As at 31st March 2021, so far as is known to the directors of the Company,
the following persons (other than a director or the chief executive of the
Company) had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

F2 BB R B oAl N b A AR A W) AR
hBER Z R AR

RZEZ—F=A=+—0  BARRESHH
E o TIAL(TBEARRESREEBITHRA
BI)RARBIRMD RABRERO P HEEREES X
B G EEXVEB SR 2 ] 359 2B Z M ST B A AR 1A A
Bk R

Number of shares

RGEE
Long/short Beneficial Family
Name position owner interests Percentage
LY L5597y} BERBEEA XEHEE B
MZ2B Holding Limited Long 90,000,000 = 45%
e (Note (a))
(FM¥E(a))
Bestmark Management Limited Long 30,000,000 = 15%
e (Note (b))
(M5 (b))
Ms. Wan Lam Keng Long S 30,000,000 15%
EMER L e (Note (b))
(B EE(D)
Notes: Mz -
(a) Please refer to Note (a) under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's (a) FHR2HEERTIETRAERRARERESZ
Interests in Equity and Debt Securities”. W as | —EiMtEE(a) ©
(b) Please refer to Note (b) under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's (b) FLH EERTIETBRAEBRRARELRES Y

Interests in Equity and Debt Securities”. The interests of Bestmark Management
Limited and Ms. Wan Lam Keng were in respect of the same interest and duplicated
each other.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2021, according to the register
of interests required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO, there was no person who had any interest or short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO.
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Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers
During the year, the Group sold less than 10% of its goods to its five
largest customers.

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group’s
major suppliers are as follows:

— the largest supplier 12%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 24%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in these major suppliers or customers.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Directors’ Interests in a Competing Business
None of the Directors or their respective associates was interested in,
apart from the Group's business, any business which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31st March 2021, the Group entered into certain
transactions with “related parties” as defined under the applicable
accounting standards and the details of the material related party
transactions (the “Transactions”) are disclosed in Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Transactions falls under
the definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing connected
transactions” under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, but are fully
exempted from shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Connected Transactions (continued)
Exempted Continuing Connected Transactions

1.

The Group occupies the following shops and premises leased from
M-Bar Limited (“M-Bar”). M-Bar is a company beneficially owned
as to 30% by Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure, 30% by Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl, 20% by Mr. Hung Ying Fung and as to the remaining 20%
by Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix, all of whom being the executive
directors of the Company.

On 30th September 2019, Mobicon Holdings Limited (“MHL"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a new
tenancy agreement with M-Bar to renew the lease agreements in
respect of the lease agreements in respect of Units 1-11 on 7th
Floor, Units 1—4 on 8th Floor and Units 1-9 on 23rd Floor, New
Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East, 104 King Fuk Street,
San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong for a term of one year from 1st
October 2019 to 30th September 2020 at an aggregate monthly
rental of HK$187,000.

On 30th September 2020, MHL entered into a new tenancy
agreement with M-bar to renew the tenancies in respect of the
same premises for a term of one year from 1st October 2020 to 30th
September 2021 at an aggregated monthly rental of HK$187,000.

The leased premises are used as the headquarters of the Group
and ancillary use.

On 30th September 2019, MHL entered into a new tenancy
agreement with M-Bar to renew the lease agreement in respect
of Portion of 3rd Floor, Efficiency House, 35 Tai Yau Street, San
Po Kong, Kowloan, Hong Kong for a term of one year commencing
from 1st October 2019 to 30th September 2020 at an aggregated
monthly rental of HK$45,000.

On 30th September 2020, MHL entered into a new tenancy
agreement with M-bar to renew the tenancies in respect of the
same premises for a term of one year from 1st October 2020 to 30th
September 2021 at an aggregated monthly rental of HK$45,000.

The leased premises are used as storage with ancillary office (in
respect of Portion of 1st Floor) and godown for storage (in respect
of 3rd Floor).

During the year, the Group paid rental expenses amounting to
HK$2,784,000 (Note 28) to M-Bar.
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Distributable Reserves

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda (as amended), retained profit and
contributed surplus are distributable to shareholders, subject to the
condition that the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make
a distribution out of retained profit and contributed surplus if (i) it is, or
would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; or (ii) the realizable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st March 2021 amounted to
approximately HK$67,484,000 (2020: HK$69,206,000).

Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
each of the last five financial years is set out on pages 147 and 148.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office
will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for
the re-appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as the auditors of
the Company for the subsequent year is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the board of directors

Hung Kim Fung, Measure
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th June 2021
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Mgt FH A RS
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF
MOBICON GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mobicon
Group Limited (the “"Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the "Group”) set out on pages 49 to 146, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st March 2021, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st March
2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Qur responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors” Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Inventory valuation and allowance

A B0 8 %

ES R

BB FELRERMOBLAN - BAHA
B AR BREOBHRASENEER - BLF
FRERMEIEREAMBRRRLABRE
ETREN - RMTEHELEREHREBOE
B

Refer to Note 2.12, Note 4(a) and Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

H2HEE MR MRMFE2.12 - MiFE4a) R HEE18 -

We identified the valuation and allowance of inventories as a
key audit matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined with the
judgements associated with determining the amount of allowances
on inventories.

ENTEAREBEREVBRERBEEZ  NLETHFERE
SEERFTERMAAAE - MR MBEEFENGHEREERE
BEEIE -

At 31st March 2021, the Group held inventories of approximately
HK$186,590,000. As described in the accounting policies in Note 2.12
to the consolidated financial statements, inventories are carried at
the lower of cost and net realizable value. As a result, management
applied judgement to assess the net realizable value of slow
moving stocks based upon the stock ageing report with reference
to the current marketability and latest selling prices of the relevant
inventories. Stocks are written down to their net realizable value
where this falls below their cost.
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Evaluating whether inventories were stated at the
lower of cost and net realizable value at the reporting
date by comparing the sales prices of inventories
subsequent to the reporting date with their carrying
values as at 31st March 2021; and

FREREAPR FEEERFEN T -_—F=
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Evaluating analysis and assessment made by
Management with respect to slow-moving inventories;
and

HEEREMBETFEMEZ T KA - &

Checking for individual products that invoiced costs
have been correctly recorded; and
ZESERENERD ERLHCEZER &

Assessing whether items in the inventory ageing report
were classified within the appropriate ageing category
by comparing individual items in the report with the
underlying documentation.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)
Impairment of trade receivables

OB W S R sk )k L

PR 5 FIH ()

Refer to Note 2.10, Note 3.1(h), Note 4(b) and Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

BLRRE VIS HRERMIEE2.10 ~ BIEE31(b) ~ B sE4(b) KRBT EE19 o
As at 31st March 2021, the Group had trade receivables amounted
to approximately HK$56,868,000 (net of provision for impairment of
approximately HK$1,622,000).

RZEB-Z_—F=A=+—0 - &B5EENEKESEROE
56,868,000/7% 7T ( 2 HNRR IR A B8 491,622,000/ 7T )

We identified the valuation of trade receivables as a key audit matter
due to the estimation of expected credit losses involved a significant
level of judgement by management to determine the use of internal
and external data from various sources to establish the historical
credit loss experience and to adjust this experience for expected
future changes, recognizing that these factors are all subject to a
certain level of uncertainty.
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The Group applied the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
lifetime expected credit losses (“ECL") allowance for all trade
receivables. Accordingly, management grouped trade receivables
with similar credit risk characteristics and ageing profile. The
estimated ECL rates were based on historical credit loss rates for
different groups and adjusted to reflect the current and multiple
forward-looking information on macro-economic factors that are
considered relevant to determine the abhility of customers to settle the
receivables in the future. Management also assessed the sufficiency
of the ECL estimation by considering the subsequent settlement
status, credit profile and on-going trading relationships with the
customers.
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Understanding, evaluating and validating the
key controls performed by management over the
impairment assessment process, in particular those
over the identification of impaired receivables and the
calculation of provisions according to the lifetime ECL
model; and
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Evaluating management’s assessment of the historical
credit loss rates by sample checking inputs in respect
of the assumptions made, such as historical payment
records, correspondence on any disputes or claims with
the customers and subsequent records; and
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Understanding the status of each of the material
trade receivables past due as at year end, the
Group’s on-going business relationships with the
relevant customers and past settlement history of the
customers through discussion with management; and
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Checking the computation of the amount of provision
and evaluated the expected future changes in credit
risks in management’s assessment by sample checking
the inputs to the assumptions to external data sources;
and
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Performing testing, on a sample basis, of the accuracy
of the trade receivables ageing report.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and The Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Hui Chun Keung, David.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hui Chun Keung, David
Practising Certificate Number: P05447

Hong Kong, 29th June 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
HEHBER

For the year ended 31st March 2021 BlE —F - —F=A=+—HItFE

Revenue Wz 456,369 461,245
Cost of sales SHER AR (346,516) (358,614)
Gross profit ES 109,853 102,631
Other income and net gains Hip g A Rz %58 6 11,398 3,969
Distribution and selling expenses SEE R SNE B (34,193) (36,104)
General and administrative expenses —BRITHERER (63,819) (65,364)
Operating profit 4K | 23,239 5132
Finance costs Bl B AN 8 (2,700) (3,567)
Profit before income tax BT E R AR 20,539 1,565
Income tax expense Frigfif s 9 (1,950) (4,814)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREHF, (E51E) 7 18,589 (3,249)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: FE(EHF(Ei8) -

Equity holders of the Company RAREZIZEEA (VALY (5,729)
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR RE S 6,438 2,480

18,589 (3,249

Earnings/(loss) per share attributable to £ RARQ F#EZIEE A
the equity holders of the Company FE(RBRER, (BE)
during the year

— Basic and diluted (HK cents) — B EEE CEN) 10 (2.86)

Details of dividends are disclosed in Note 11 to the consolidated financial R EFFIERG A BRENTNHE -
statements.

BERAEEERLAR - —B=—FFR
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

N NIL G

For the year ended 31st March 2021 Bl ZE —FE - —F =H=+—HILFE

FR il (E18) 18,589 (3,249)

Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income/(expense)  Ht2EK A, (FIX)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to ~ HZAJE#H HiEZE

profit or loss HBwm 2 HEH
Currency translation differences: ERiREERE
— Subsidiaries NG (17.471)
Item that will not be reclassified HEETEEH7EE

subsequently to profit or loss 15z IEH
Revaluation gain on property, Y - BB R

plant and equipment 2 BB 95
Other comprehensive income/(expense) FEREMEEYA ()

for the year, net of tax (EHBRFIE) 15,002 (17,376)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) 2HEWA(FX) @5 33,591 (20,625)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) JEMEZ2EWA, ()

attributable to: HEE
Equity holders of the Company RNABEEFEEA (16,166)
Non-controlling interests FEPE R A (4,459)

(20,625)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

i B B BIR DAk

As at 31st March 2021 R—Z-—%=HA=+—H

Non-current assets REBEE

Property, plant and equipment WE - BEREE 14
Right-of-use assets EAEEE 14
Intangible assets B EE 16
Investment properties BEME 15
Goodwill 5k 16
Other receivables o fth UG R IA

Current assets RBEE

Inventories e 18
Trade receivables FEURE 5 EBRR 19
Other receivables and deposits H U R IE R IR E

Current income tax recoverable A Y [l BN ER P15

Cash and bank balances Be RIFITHES 20
Total assets EEHE

Current liabilities pE =R

Trade payables FEH B SRR 21
Other payables and accruals Eb A RE R EE A
Contract liabilities EHEE

Loan from a shareholder R E 22
Lease liabilities HeaE 14
Short-term bank borrowings RHRITIEE 23
Current income tax liabilities BNERFTIS T B E

Net current assets REEEZRE

Total assets less current liabilities ZEEZERRBERE

29,107
6,937
92
4,623

2,688

43,447

186,590
56,868
13,87

178
33,525

291,032

334,479

40,985
15,327
1,294
25,000
4,188
69,937
102

156,833

134,199

177,646

166,032
51,227
12,974

1
28,830

259,174

306,355

31,331
15,140
3,338
32,000
7,796
67,586
1,192

158,383

100,791

147,972
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A MBI

As at 31st March 2021 R=—Z-—F=HA=+—H

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Lease liabilities

FRBEE

Net assets

Capital and reserves attributable
to the equity holders of
the Company

Share capital

Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

BEERIARE 24 1,646 2,279

HEaf 14 3,125 4,209

4,1 6,488

EEFE 172,875 141,484
AABERFEA
FEAR BR AN R it

PN 25 20,000 20,000

s 105,155 86,284

125,155 106,284

IR 47,720 35,200

RERAE 172,875 141,484

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorized for
issue by the Board of Directors on 29th June 2021 and signed on its behalf

by:

HUNG KIM FUNG, MEASURE

Chairman

2
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
e

For the year ended 31st March 2021 HiZE— T -—F=A=+—HIFE

Balance at 1st April 2019 RZB-NENA-RAZEsH 20,000 16,706 800 (13910) 4954 $I00 104450 34638 159,088
Total comprehensive (sxpense)fincome M2 E(FR) /WA LS
for the year - - - (1053 % B729) 16166 (4459 (20,625)
Acquisition of subsidiaries e =N - - - - - - - 5021 5021
Release of revaluation reserve upon 0% BERRENER
depreciation of property, plant and SREHE
equipment - - - - (54) b - - -
Dividends of the Company: FRARE
2019 final dividend “E-NERERE - - - - - (10000 {1,000 - (1,000)
2020 interim dividend “E-TEMERS - - - - - (10000 {1,000 - (1,000)
Balance at 31st March 2020 R-B-Bf¥=B=1-R
&R 20000 16,706 800 (2442) 4995 88225 86284 35200 141484
Representing; =y
2020 final dividend “EoTERERE 1,000
(thers Hih 87225
88225

ERAEEERLAT - —B=-—F5FH



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Ao EER

For the year ended 31st March 2021 i E —E - —F = H=+—HI-FE

Balance at 1st April 2020 R-F-ZENA-H2 &% 20000 16,706 800 (4dd2)  4%% 8825 86284 B0 14148

Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FRZENALE - - - 867 & s 08N 127200 33591

Release of revaluation reserve upon N%  BERAEIFEREE
depreciation of property, plant and EftRE

equipment - - - - [51) 51 - _ _
Dividends paid to non-controlling BRT-HNBAT
interests of a subsidiary iR RE - - - - - - - (200 200
Dividends of the Company: ARARE
2020 inal dividend “ECEERERS - - - - - (1000 {1,000/ - (100)
2021 interim dividend “To-ERERS - - - - - (1,000 (1,000) - (1,000
Balance at 31st March 2021 R-B=-%¥=h=1-B
ik 20000 16,706 800  (15767) 4989 98427 105155 47720 172875
Representing: il
2021 final dividend “EC-FRERS 1,000
(thers £ 97407
98427
Note: B3

Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of the ordinary shares A EARNAT DR TEBBR Y EE  BRE -5 —

issued by the Company and the aggregate of the share capital and share premium of 4 py 5§+ N\ B #17 > S0 HBRH FTE 2 B2 7R 45 o0
subsidiaries acquired through exchanges of shares pursuant to the reorganization which took | a3 33 (@ > R E > R 248 o

place on 18th April 2001.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HABERER

For the year ended 31st March 2021 Bl E — T - —F = H=+—HIFE

Cash flows from operating activities REEBELZHERE

Net cash generated from operations KEEBEE R TR 26 28,568 23,155
Overseas income tax paid BN ST (4,799) (3,769)
Overseas income tax refunded TFINFTIS IR B 23 -
Hong Kong Profits Tax (paid)/refunded (2 EFEFEF),
EEFIEBIRR (368) 254

Net cash generated from operating MEXBELEZESFE

activities 19,640
Cash flows from investing activities R & EEBELE RS HKE
Interest received B UHRE 192
Purchase of property, plant and BEME  BELRE

equipment 14 (1,431)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BRE REHE

plant and equipment PRiSRIE 161
Purchase of intangible assets BEELEE (114)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of WHEKB AT RS

subsidiaries piiteebe 2 (8,461)
Net cash used in investing activities ~ #®%&FEBHE RS FE (9,653)
Cash flows from financing activities RS ZEBELE 2 HEHE
Interest paid EATFE (2,700) (3,567)
Dividends paid to the Company’s ERTARARIKRE ZRE

shareholders (2,000) (2,000)
Dividends paid to non-controlling ERT—HHEAT

interest of a subsidiary ESulilr i) ¥\ (200) -
Loan from a shareholder R E - 10,755
Repayments of a shareholder’s loan BERERER (7,000) -
Repayments of lease liabilities BEHAEARE (9,504) (8,246)
Repayments of short-term bank EEBEHRTEE

borrowings (116,109) (415,769)
Proceeds from short-term bank RHRITIE B S 5E

borrowings 114,044 408,557
Net cash used in financing activities — Ev&SEB8B A 2 F5E (23,469) (10,270)

BERAEEERLAR - —B=—FFR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
OBk

For the year ended 31st March 2021 i E —E - —F = H=+—HI-FE

Net decrease in cash and RERBESEEWRD

cash equivalents po:d-:] (894) (283)
Cash and cash equivalents at FNzHERReEEY

beginning of the year 28,830 31,733
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EX @ &)y g2 1,776 (2,620)
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZESREASEEY

end of the year 28,830
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRHASEEY

cash equivalents: HEEROHT
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERS 20 33,525 28,830
Bank overdrafts RITEX 23 (3,813) -

29,712 28,830
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok B T 5 A M

2.1

General Information

Mobicon Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the trading
and distribution of electronic components, electrical components
and equipment and computer products and mobile accessories and
trading of cosmetic products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda as an exempted company under the Companies Act of
Bermuda. The addresses of its registered office and principal place
of business are set out in the Company’s annual report.

The Company’s shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 7th May 2001.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless
otherwise stated.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“"HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
property, plant and equipment and investment properties, which
are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok S 5 A M

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Amendments to standards and conceptual framework
adopted by the Group

(a) The Group has adopted or early adopted the following amendments
to standards and conceptual framework that have been issued and
effective for the Group’s financial year beginning on or after 1st
April 2020:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Conceptual Framework for  Revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 Financial Reporting
Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19—-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30th June 2021

The amendments and conceptual framework listed above did not
have any impact on the amounts recognized in prior periods and are
not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods,
except for the Amendments to HKFRS 16 (Note 2.2).

58 Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2021

2

2.1

(a)

FEFGHBRME 2

B LI A (48 )
FEEERY 2 ERINEET RBE2AESE

AEBEDRAKRBERBATR T
FEMA-—HHZERRABZ AR ET R
FREERMMEERZERER] RBERIE

48

BFEGFEFIRE BRZER
A EAERZ
BRI

BREWHEMEERENR EBZER

RV MEERIFESR - MEREERE
R G ERFER K

S s 4R
BIHRZAERT A
ZE- \FHHEREHRS SETHMER
HEZR ERSHESR
EBTBRELERE165 2019BTRES
ZABET AN R A
SER
EBPEMELERNF165 AT ——
BRI NA=ZTH
1% 220197
RIEE R
HERLSE
=

TR

BEBM G IREERIE165R BT A (M
#£22)50 0 EIERT A RBUSAEZRY &
HROBEEREATERN S REREAF
& YRBMEIEEAME IR KM
BREATE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
New standards and amendments to standards not yet

adopted

(b) New standards, amendments to existing standards and
interpretations which have been issued but are not effective for
the financial year beginning on 1st April 2020 and have not been

early adopted:

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-
20207

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framewaork?

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2°
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10.and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between

HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®
HKFRS 17 and Amendments to  Insurance Contracts and the related
HKFRS 17 Amendments'
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current’
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?

Amendments to Accounting Merger Accounting for Common Control

Guideline 5 Combinations?
HK Int 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial Statements —

Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause'

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2023.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2022.

E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st June 2020.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.1

2.2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

New standards and amendments to standards not yet
adopted (continued)

The Group is in the process of assessing the potential impact of
the above new HKFRSs upon initial application but is not yet in
a position to state whether the above new and amendments to
HKFRSs will have a significant impact on the Group’s and the
Company’s results of operations and financial position.

Changes in accounting policies

Amendments to HKFRS 16 — COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The Group has early adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16 — COVID-
19-Related Rent Concessions retrospectively from 1st April
2020. The amendment provides an optional practical expedient
allowing lessees to elect not to assess whether a rent concession
related to COVID-19 is a lease modification. Lessees adopting
this election may account for qualifying rent concessions in the
same way as they would if they were not lease modifications.
The practical expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring
as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if
all of the following conditions are met: a. the change in lease
payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change; b. any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments due on or before 30th June 2021;
and c. there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions
of the lease.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all qualifying
COVID-19-related rent concessions. Rent concessions totaling
approximately HK$186,000 have been accounted for as
negative variable lease payments and recognized in general and
administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement for
the year ended 31st March 2021, with a corresponding adjustment
to the lease liahility. There is no impact on the opening balance of
equity at 1st April 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok B T 5 A M

2.2

2.3
231

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)
Amendment to HKFRS 16 — COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30th June 2021

The amendment extend the practical expedient available to
lessees in accounting for COVID-19-related rent concessions
by one year. The reduction in lease payments could only affect
payments originally due on or before 30th June 2021 is extended
to 30th June 2022. The amendment is effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1st April 2021, with earlier
application permitted.

Subsidiaries

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity where
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date
that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealized
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries
are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of financial position respectively.
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2.3
231
(a)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Consolidation (continued)

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all
business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments
or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
business, the equity interests issued by the Group, the fair value
of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement and the fair value of any pre-existing equity interest
in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. The Group recognizes any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity on an acquisition date. The Group recognizes any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’'s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity and the acquisition-
date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired
entity over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognized directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.3
231
(a)

(b)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Consolidation (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred,
the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present
value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the
entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier
under comparable terms and conditions. Contingent consideration
is classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to
fair value with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date. Any gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognized in profit or loss.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or received
is recognized in a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.
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2.3
2.3.1
(b)

232

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Consolidation (continued)

Changes in ownership interests (continued)

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an
investment because of a loss of control, joint control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its
fair value with the change in carrying amount recognized in profit
or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee's net assets including goodwill.
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2.4

2.5
(a)

(b)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the steering committee that
makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK dollars (HK$), which is the Company's functional and the
Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates are generally recognized in profit or loss. They are
deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and
qualifying net investment hedges or are attributable to part of the
net investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, within
“finance costs”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a net
basis within “general and administrative expenses”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognized in profit or loss as part of the
fair value gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetary
assets such as equities classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are recognized in other comprehensive
income.
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2.5
(c)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position;

(b) income and expenses for each statement of profit
or loss and statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other financial instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognized in other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold or any borrowings
forming part of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part of
the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.
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2.5
(d)

2.6

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
venture that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a
foreign operation), all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated currency translation
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognized in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that
is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest in associates or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold
properties, are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the Group.
Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
Subsequently, they are carried at fair value. Changes in fair values
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as
part of a valuation gain or loss in “other income and net gains” or
“general and administrative expenses”.
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2.7

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as
a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.

Freehold land is stated at cost and not depreciated.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their costs, net of their residual values, over their

estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold properties 25 to 60 years

Furniture and fixtures 4 years
Office equipment 4 years
Motor vehicles 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2.8
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.3.1. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
Goodwill is not amortized but it is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified
at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating segments.

Licenses

Separately acquired licenses are shown at historical cost. Licenses
acquired in a business combination are recognized at fair value
at the acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and are
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
impairment losses.

Amortization methods and periods
The Group amortizes intangible assets with a limited useful life
using the straight-line method over the following periods:

Licenses 3 years
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2.9

2.10
(a)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Investments and other financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through OCI or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the group has made an irrevocable election at the time of
initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.
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2.10
(b)

(c)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognized when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss (the “FVPL"), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed
in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. The Group classifies its debt
instruments as financial assets at amortized cost.

Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognized directly in profit or loss and presented
in other income and net gains together with foreign exchange
gains and losses. Impairment losses are included in general and
administrative expenses.
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2.10
(c)

(d)

2.11

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Measurement (continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present
fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognized in profit or loss as other income when
the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognized
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit
loss associated with its debt instruments carried at amortized
cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note
3.1 details how the Group determines whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables. For other
receivables, impairment is measured as either 12-month expected
credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk of a
receivable has occurred since initial recognition, then impairment
is measured as lifetime expected credit losses.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position where
the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognized amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2.12

2.13

2.14

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method
and excludes borrowing costs. Costs of purchased inventories are
determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realizable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandize sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade receivables is expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognized initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognized at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings
in current liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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2.15

2.16

2.17

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. Trade and other payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented
as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group obtains
rights to receive consideration from the customer and assumes
performance obligations to transfer goods or provide services to
the customer. The combination of those rights and performance
obligations gives rise to a net asset or a net liability depending on
the relationship between the remaining rights and the performance
obligations. The contract is an asset and recognized as contract
assets if the measure of the remaining rights exceeds the measure
of the remaining performance obligations. Conversely, the contract
is a liability and recognized as contract liabilities if the measure of
the remaining performance obligations exceeds the measure of the
remaining rights.
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2.18

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognized in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another
party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in profit or loss as
finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the
entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all
or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is
recognized in profit or loss, which is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair
value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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2.19

2.20

2.21

(a)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognized in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contract issued by the Group are initially
measured at the fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

° the amount determined in accordance with expected credit
loss model under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and

o the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortization recognized in accordance with
the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as the present
value of the difference in net cash flows between the contractual
payments under the debt instrument and the payments that would
be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that
would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable
on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Company's subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2.21
(b)

(c)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except for deferred income tax liahility where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets
and liahilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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2.22
(a)

(b)

(c)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Employee benefits

Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined contribution plans, the
assets of which are generally held in independently administered
funds. The Group's contributions to the defined contribution
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognized when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognized until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognized as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to become exercisable. At the end
of each reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to become exercisable. It
recognizes the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any,
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity. The proceeds received net of
any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.
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2.22
(d)

2.23

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments are
recognized as a liahility when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected to
be settled within 12 months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognized when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.
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2.24

(a)

(b)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and value added taxes.
The Group recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of control to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for goods or services.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognized when control over such
products is transferred, being when the products are delivered or
shipped, the customer has accepted the products and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customers” acceptance
of the products. Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specified location and the risk of obsolescence and
loss have been transferred to the customers.

A receivable is recognized when the goods are delivered as this is
the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because
only the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

A contract liability is recognized when the Group has received
deposits from the customers. The Group records these as other
payables and accruals in advance in the liahilities section of
the consolidated statement of financial position. Such contract
liability is recognized as revenue when such goods are delivered to
customers.

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method.
When a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future
cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired receivables is recognized
using the original effective interest rate.

Service income, management fee and commission income are
recognized over time based on the actual service provided to the
end of the reporting period as a proportion of the total services to
be provided because the customer receives and uses the benefits
simultaneously.

Rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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2.25

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Lease

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use
by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
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2.25

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Lease (continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by
the Company, which does not have recent third-party
financing, and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term, country,
currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) which
has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the group entities
use that rate as a starting point to determine the incremental
borrowing rate.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable
lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not included
in the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to
lease payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease
liability is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received

o any initial direct costs, and

° restoration costs.
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2.25

2.26

2.27

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Lease (continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
If the group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset's
useful life. While the group revalues its land and buildings that are
presented within property, plant and equipment, it has chosen not
to do so for the right-of-use buildings held by the group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognized on
a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less without
a purchase option. Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and
small items of office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognized in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term
(Note 27). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset
and recognized as expense over the lease term on the same basis
as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in the
balance sheet based on their nature. The Group did not need to
make any adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor
as a result of adopting the new leasing standard.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized
as a liability in the Group's and the Company's financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by
the Company’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grants will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognized
in the income statement over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.28 Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent.

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management personnel
of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members

who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2021
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3.1

(a)
(i)

Financial Risk Management

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury department
(group treasury) under policies approved by the Board. Group
treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close
co-operation with the Group’s operating units. The Board provides
written principles for overall risk management, as well as written
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments
and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess
liquidity.

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong, Mainland China, South
Africa, Malaysia, Singapore and Taiwan and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to United States dollars ("USD"). Foreign exchange
risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognized assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.

The directors of the Company consider that the foreign exchange
risk is not significant and the Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange risk exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange risk exposure should the need arise.

3
3.1

(a)
(i)
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3 Financial Risk Management (continued) 3
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1
(a) Market risk (continued) (a)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (continued) (i)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the reporting
date to a reasonably possible change in the USD exchange rates,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before
income tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and

liabilities).

2021

If New Taiwan dollar weakens against USD

If New Taiwan dollar strengthens against USD
If Singapore dollar weakens against USD

If Singapore dollar strengthens against USD

If South African Rand weakens against USD

—B--F

¥ BB L X TR E
3 & B X TTIHE
BT TRy 4=
i AR T R T T HE
fif e AR E
f

R FE B B )

o 5 L o I (42

A mE ()

A3 )
TRERN RS BBME e ss
BRE  KEEBRFAEHAEAYET
ERAaARESy GRE(HEREE
REBEAFEED) -

If South African Rand strengthens against USD {473 3EESH ZFHE

2020 —ECBE

If New Taiwan dollar weakens against USD WAt ETRE 5% (456) -
If New Taiwan dollar strengthens against USD e ETTHE -5% 456 -
If Singapore dollar weakens against USD fEFr kTR E T E 5% (157) -
If Singapore dollar strengthens against USD fHEFT IR TR ETHE -5% 157 -
If South African Rand weakens against USD RIS ETEE 5% (128) -
If South African Rand strengthens against USD {4 sEESH E T FHE -5% 128 -

* Excluding retained profits * TEIER 17 A
(if) Price risk (ii) 1Z75 )8 B

The Group is not exposed to significant price risks during the years

ended 31st March 2021 and 2020.
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3.1
(a)
(iii)

Financial Risk Management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly
attributable to its interest-bearing bank borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk. Details of the Group's interest-bearing borrowings
have been disclosed in Note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policies. However, management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before income tax (through the
impact on floating rate borrowings) and the Group's equity.

3
3.1
(a)
(iii)

A% R BB B )

o 5 A o IR 6 (42

AIEER ()

B n R A FEFFRR
FEBEZFREHRBR TS RE LTS
BITEE IHF KRB Y B EEH
AEEARYRSRENEAR - K%
Bit B s e 2 BRGNS EREN T
2318 T o 75 52 B 3 B U0 4 A R R S
%R EEE-—BEEMXEAR
PEREBEREFEHEAFEER o

TREREAERMEBRITE K
KEBRAEHANEN(EREREEZF
BIRAEERSHANEAEHREEE
BHHRE -

2021 —E--F

Floating rate borrowings FEER

Floating rate borrowings FEEE

2020 —EoRE

Floating rate borrowings FEEE 50 (338) -

Floating rate borrowings REEE (50) 338 -
* Excluding retained profits * TRERFHET
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3.1
(b)

Financial Risk Management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its financial assets
at trade receivables, other receivables and deposits, and cash and
bank balances. The carrying amounts of trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits, and cash and bank balances represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk associated
with cash deposits at banks since they are substantially deposited
at medium or large-sized listed banks. Management does
not expect that there will be any significant losses from non-
performance by these counterparties. The existing counterparties
do not have default in the past. Therefore, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for expected
credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of
the lifetime expected credit loss provision for impairment of
all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics. The Group has performed historical analysis
and identified the key economic variables impacting credit risk
and expected credit loss. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have
been grouped based on nature of customer accounts and shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2021
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3  Financial Risk Management (continued) 3
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b)

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31st March 2021 and 2020
was determined as follows for trade receivables:

Individual assessment (EGIREE
Collective assessment ST
(based on due dates) (ZEIHBE)
0 to 60 days TE60H
61 to 120 days 6121208
121 to 180 days 121£180H
181 to 365 days 1812365H

R BB B )

o 5 A o IR 6 (42

EERB(E)
REZEE R-T- FR-T-F
E=B=+—ArEKESERERE
BEEmT:

(997) 55,801
(57) 930
(19) 73

(331) 64

(1,622) 56,868

Individual assessment BERIzEE 100% 233 (233) -
Collective assessment SR
(based on due dates) (ZEIHBE)
0to 60 days T FE60H 2% 48,505 (743) 47,762
61 to 120 days 61£120H 4% 3,073 (129) 2,944
121 to 180 days 121%2180H 16% 315 (52) 263
181 to 365 days 181%365H 52% 533 (275) 258
52,659 (1,432) 51,227
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3  Financial Risk Management (continued) 3 WMEREEHe)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

3.1 WMERBEEEXE)
(b) =EmEkE (&)

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable BWESERSELZERB 2 EIBHE
expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable BT UAMEE - BBEWE 2 ABHE 218
expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a EZaE(EPaE) REAREERNEE
debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group, and a failure ERCERTGTEI R ARBER AN -

to make contractual payments.

The loss allowances for trade receivables as at 31st March 2021 R FR_E_TEF=HA=+—
and 2020 reconcile to the opening loss allowance as follows: BrREWE ZEFEBEBELAFIEER
B HRMT:

At 1st April 2020

R-_ZE-_ZTFMNA—H

Provision
Reversal
Exchange difference

B
B[l
M 3 5

At 31st March 2021

R-_ZE-—F=ZA=+—H

At 1st April 2019 RZE—NFUA—H 1,329
Provision oA 1,332
Reversal B[ (1,097)
Exchange difference FE 4 58 (132)
At 31st March 2020 R-ZE-_TF=F=+—H 1,432
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3.1
(b)

(c)

Financial Risk Management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

As at 31st March 2021 and 2020, the Group has assessed that
the expected loss rate for other receivables and deposits was
immaterial. Thus no loss allowance for other receivables and
deposits was recognized.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the
Board, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group’s short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The
Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and
reserve barrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities.

At 31st March 2021, the Group had several short-term bank
borrowings including bank overdrafts with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$69,937,000 (2020: HK$67,586,000).

3
3.1
(b)

(c)
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3  Financial Risk Management (continued) 3 WMEREEHe)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MEREEE)

(c)  Liquidity risk (continued) (c) REEER ()

AEBeMEERBENRS BHRA
KRR B E 2 DHERMT

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
as at the reporting date, based on the contractual undiscounted

92

payments, was as follows:

2021 —E--E
Trade payables ERESER 40,985 40,985 40,985
Other payables and accruals e 7B )2
EHER 15,321 15,321 15,321
Loan from a shareholder BRES 25,000 25,000 25,000
Lease liabilities MEERE 490 4,585 1833 1313
Short-term bank borrowings 45 B3R5 E 274 70,022 70,022 69,937
155,919 159,167 158,562
2020 “E-TF
Trade payables ERESER 31,331 - - - 31331 31,331
Other payables and accruals  E /B 308 &
JEFTER 15,140 - - - 15,140 15,140
Loan from a shareholder REER 32,000 - - - 32,000 32,000
Lease liabilities HEBE 45 8,093 3815 469 - 12,317 12,005
Short-term bank borrowings  #iR1TEE 3.66 68,271 - - - 68,271 67,586
154,835 3815 469 - 159,119 158,062
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3.2

Financial Risk Management (continued)
Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including loan from a shareholder
and short-term bank borrowings) less cash and cash equivalents.

The Group's strategy remains unchanged and the gearing ratios at
31st March 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

Total borrowings
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

fEERE

B Re RREFED

R BB B )

25 A, e 5 7

FEBEERERY BIEAREREDT
SECE YR R AR H B 5
RAHMEREE ABEFRNE > URER
BRIEAABRIUREESHRA -

RERFRABELERE  AEEAHE
AR ZBEEEE  MERREER
ARBEITHRAEEEERE ©

AEBREERBLRERER - It
RNREBFEGAESEETE - &
BERDREEAB(BREREREE
HIRTER) AR MRS FEEYHE -

AREZRBEETE  RZF-—F
R-B-TEZ=A=t+—AZHEEAME
HEmT :

94,937
(33,525)

99,586
(28,830)

61,412

172,875 141,484

Net debt BT 58
Total equity TR 4ATE
Gearing ratio AEAMALE

35.5%
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3  Financial Risk Management (continued) 3
3.3  Fair value estimation 3.3
The table below analyzes financial instruments carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been defined

as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)

(level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable input)
(level 3).

At 31st March 2021 and 2020, the Group did not have any financial
assets and liabilities that are measured at the above fair value
measurements hierarchy.

There were no significant transfers of financial assets between
Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

3.4 Financial instruments by category 34
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments at the reporting date are as follows:

Financial assets EREE

S0 5 R B 4% PR 42)

5P st
TRIZGEETESTAAFEIES S
BIA  SZHATWET

. HRAEEXEBEEERTS 2R
BOREHE)(F—R) -

. BRE-—RBPIEZ2WMEIN  TEE
(BMZER) s (BB ERLT
EVBRMBrEERBERAE
(B=#R) -

o WIEKBEBRAGMERIEZE
EXaERAEBEBERMESEH
ABE)(E=ZR) »

RZEBE-Z—FR-_F_ZTF=A=+—
B AEBIWETMZLEEAFEHSE
BRFEZERMEEREE -

FRN B FARFE=ZHZEL
BEMNERTHEEEY -

R E 5 2 4k TR
RBEAH SERTABRRZEKEE
W

Financial assets at amortized cost RHMENATEZoRERE
— Trade receivables —EUE BRI 56,868
— Other receivables and deposits —H b ZIE R ig S 9,512
— Cash and bank balances — IR & RIRTTHER 33,525

Financial liabilities EA= =R

Liabilities at amortized cost REERATTEZBE
— Trade payables — BB SER 40,985
— Other payables and accruals —H it ENRIE N ERHE 15,327
— Loan from a shareholder —BERER 25,000
— Lease liabilities -HEaE 1,313
— Short-term bank borrowings —IEEIRITIEE 69,937
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(a)

(b)

©

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

Net realizable value of inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less variable selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer demand
and competitor actions. Management reassesses these estimates
at the end of each reporting date.

Impairment of receivables

The provision of impairment for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Group uses significant judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation based on
the Group's past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Details of the key assumption and inputs used are disclosed in
Note 3.1(b).

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount of
the provision for income taxes. There are certain transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current income
tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

(a)

(b)

()

N CHETH P E] ]
AEBSERBECRREMARTE
fEE RH - BEREMERTHEER
Y AR FEN A R -

AEBEPARREL AT RER - BRE
& AUMELZEFHAAZEIR
HEAERER - TXAwRAAEER
T EMRFEZEERABREER
EHBRBRZ EFFREBRR

Rz W B FE
FEZASRFELSRERBBRERM
AEERTEEHERXZHRE - %F
HEDRBRITTREEUEEERZ
BEHEERFL - EFRREHRE
FHFZTHHESHARMBEHAELERXR
25  EEERNERENHEEREH
FHEZE AR

JRE WALk I TR
TREEREBRBIRBRZOERR 2K
BRRFEHEREMEE - £FHZFR
RIEDGEBECBARER - £AF
BAEREXRAE - GREHEDERK
SENEERSL BRITTHBERARR
FEREPEAE BHORELEEETIE
B FTERZ ARER B ABEZH
TEPAPRTFES. 1 (b) BEER

it £ #¢

REBABMZ EREER ZAEHR -
REERSHREBERSER  AEHEX
HIET c REEEXBEET  ETRHK
PIst EREMBAEELIETE - MEFFHE
LEREARMBGBREY LT ZKET
Rl ZEZBRBEELEBRENEZ
BRI M LB T PR IS T BB IER & -
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5

Revenue and Segment Information
Revenue recognized during the year is as follows:

Revenue g

Sales of electronic components,
electrical components and equipment NiEs

Sales of computer products, mobile
accessories and service income

Sales of cosmetic products fHE b

WEETTH  ERH

HEEMER - FHEEMN
AR AR HEA

W 25 B 4 R R
ERRRZWEEIT

293,733 287,487

97,057 97,073
65,579 76,685

456,369 461,245

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors of the Company (the “Executive Directors”). The
Executive Directors have reviewed the Group's internal reports in
order to assess the performance and allocate resources; they have
also determined the operating segments based on these reports.
The Executive Directors have further considered the business
from product perspective and have assessed the performance of
three main business segments: (i) Electronic and Electrical Trading
Business — Distribution of electronic components, electrical
components and equipment; and (ii) Computer Business — Retail
sales of computer products, mobile accessories, distribution of
computer products and provision of IT outsourcing and solution
services and (iii) Cosmetic and Online Retail Business — Trading
and retail and distribution of cosmetic products through retail
shops and online channels.

The Executive Directors have assessed the performance of the
operating segments based on segment results before corporate
expenses and finance costs.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2021
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5

Revenue and Segment Information (continued)
The segment results for the year ended 31st March 2021 are as

follows:

Revenue from external customers

RENREF 2 i

Time of revenue recognition
- Ata point in time

YRR R
-RE-BH

- Over time -R-RERERA

Segment results PHEE

Finance costs BENA

Profit before income tax BAEBiAnER

Income tax expense (Note 9] FEREZ (M)

Profit for the year ERaH

Other segment items included in the EfSINGERRR L
consolidated statement of profit or loss AHBEMT :
are as follows:

Amortization of intangible assets BREERY

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 912 - RERRENE

Depreciation of right-of-use assets PREAENE

Gain on disposal of property, plant and HENE - BEREZE NG
equipment

Impairment losses on goodwill BEHESE

Provision for impairment of trade receivables  EMBSEEEAE

Reversal of provision for impairment of EWE SR EAERTD
trade receivables

Provision/(reversal) for impairment of BEGERERE/ (BR)

slow-moving inventories

293,133

293,133

293,133

16,454

21

(114)

(2,919)

We 25 o SRE R 2)
BE _T_—F=A=+—HItFEZ
PELEMT :

456,369

95,985 455,207
1,072 1,072

97,067 65,579 456,369

4329 2418 3239

(2,700

20,539
(1,950)

18,589

120
4,306

208
(119)

142 (2,191)

BERAEEERLAR - —B=—FFR
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5  Revenue and Segment Information (continved) 5 — Wt#i R/ # & B w)
The segment results for the year ended 31st March 2020 are as BHEZ-_ZF=-A=+—HLEFEZ
follows: DEEENT :

Revenue from external customers RENREF ZWE 287,487 97,073 76,685 - 461,245
Time of revenue recognition R RR
- Atapoint in time ~NE—E 287,487 94,310 76,685 - 458,482
~ Qver time ~ I —BERIA - 2,763 - - 2,763
287,487 97,073 76,685 - 461245
Segment results PEEE 3,028 964 1144 4) 5,132
Finance costs HERAK (3,567)
Profit before income tax BRFTE B AR R 1,565
Income tax expense (Note 9) Frfadim S (fi3r9) (4.814)
Loss for the year ERER (3,249)

Other segment items included in the I AGEBER
consolidated statement of profit or ZABEEET
loss are as follows:

Amortization of intangible assets B EEZH 37 - - - 3
Depreciation of property, plant NE BERRETE

and equipment 1,075 222 633 - 1,930
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREAERE 2,182 3,389 3,003 - 8,624
Losses on disposal of property, plantand ~ HEWE  BERZEZERE

equipment 23 - - - 23
Provision for impairment of trade receivables EWE 5EERE 1,208 7 4 = 1,332
Reversal of provision for impairment EWE SETERERD

of trade receivables (849) (155) (93) - (1,097)
Provision for impairment of BEFERERE

slow-moving inventories 4191 g 12 - 40?2
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Revenue and Segment Information (continued)
Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, investment properties, intangible assets,
goodwill, inventories, trade and other receivables and cash and
bank balances. Unallocated assets comprise current income tax
recoverable and certain other receivables.

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. Unallocated
liabilities comprise items such as other payables and accruals.

Additions to non-current assets comprise additions to property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets.

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2021 and
additions to non-current assets for the year then ended are as
follows:

Assets BE 282,005

Liabilities af 131,726

Additions to non-current assets ~ REIEREEE 1,456

We 25 o SRE R 2)
SDUHEETEOEYE  BERSE -
ERREE REWE BVEE B
B.RE - KR SRR RS
HARES RBITES - RPEEES
SRR BB R B T
I8 o

DHABERELERE KROBRESR
EEMENFRARESFERSER -

REFNDEEBREREDNE  BHER
B ERAEEEREBLEE -

R-EBE-—F=A=+—HA20HNEE
LEBEBAREBEZBIEEEZAEIER
BEENT :

21,399 3,515 334,479

12,829 4,088 161,604

2,321 5,342
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5  Revenue and Segment Information (continved) 5 — Wt#i R/ # & B w)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2020 and AN—EZEF=ZR=+—HZHHEE
additions to non-current assets for the year then ended are as LEBEUAREBEZALEFEZAREIER
follows: BEENT :

Assets BE 246,07 28,716 21,452 4116 306,355

Liabilities BiE 128,102 14,186 18,495 4,088 164,871

Additions to non-current assets  REIERBEE 1,952 2113 4,018 - 8,683
The Group’s revenue is generated mainly within Hong Kong, Asia REB ZWHTEREEEFS - 5 K
Pacific, South Africa and Europe. @ - FEEIERREM o

Revenue §=
Hong Kong (country of domicile) EAEGIMEEAR) 241,310 255,795
Asia Pacific oK bR 94,490 95,082
South Africa EEES 109,362 99,575

Europe B 9,099 8,277
Other countries HBEER 2,108 2,516

456,369 461,245
Revenue is allocated based on the country in which the customer is WEIREFPEBRRDLE -
located.
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5

Revenue and Segment Information (continued)

Total assets

We 25 o SRE R 2)

165,971 158,026
21,413 43,819
110,668 80,821
26,852 19,573

Hong Kong e

Asia Pacific 25K M &
South Africa EE
Europe B
Unallocated assets FPBEE

330,964 302,239
3,515 4,116

334,479 306,355

Total assets are allocated based on where the assets are located.

Additions to non-current assets RBIERBEE
Hong Kong e

Asia Pacific 5 A&

South Africa EEES

Europe BRA

BEREREEMERSE

Additions to non-current assets is allocated based on where the
assets are located.

The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments
located in Hong Kong, Asia Pacific, South Africa and Europe are
approximately HK$5,776,000, HK$9,587,000, HK$11,513,000 and
HK$13,883,000 respectively (2020: approximately HK$9,913,000,
HK$9,573,000, HK$10,927,000 and HK$13,408,000 respectively).

NEFRBDEEREEMEHNE -

UREE - EAME - FIERBUMNZIE
REBEELE(SRIARIN HRNE
5,776,000 7T ~ 9,587,0007% 7T 11,513,000
BT K% 13883000 L(Z T =T F ¢
5 Bl 479,913,000 % JT + 9,573,000 7% T
10,927,000 7T 52.13,408,000/5 7T ) °

ERNEMERAT - —B=-—FFH
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(a)

(b)

Revenue and Segment Information (continued) 5 — W X3 &E B 2)

Information about major customers FEEFZER

No customer accounted for 10% or more of the total revenue for BE-_ T -4 kR-_ZT-_ZTF=AH

the years ended 31st March 2021 and 2020. =t—HLEFE BERPMN=EE
10%3K A _E ©

Contract liabilities (a) HBHaE

The Group has recognized the following liabilities related to AEEEHRTIREFEHNEEZE

contracts with customers: f& :

Contract liabilities related to sales of HEEESF Tt -
electronic components, electrical BRI N EES
components and equipment Vel Ay =R
Contract liabilities related to sales of BSHETISESD -
computer products, mobile accessories FHEFR R IRTE U A
and service income fHzEHNaE
Contract liabilities related to sales of HiEE( AR
cosmetic products AHEE
Contract liabilities represent receipts in advance from customers SRABEEREPWERREY K H KRR
for goods that have not yet been delivered to the customers. As at RHFEPZEMZAREFPRIE - R
31st March 2021 and 2020, the contract liabilities mainly included E_—FR-_F-FF=-A=+—8H"
the receipts in advance from individual customers for sales of EHBEIEZERENEBEREHMAER
electronic components, automation parts and equipment, sales of BERBYUEFPUBAF LI REEET
computer products and mobile accessories and sales of cosmetic T BEMEAEERER - HESKE
products after the end of respective reporting period. o N T HEBC 1 A R 3R E b 2 TR MR
1§ o
Revenue recognized in relation to contract liabilities (b) WA KA RERERZ WS
Revenue of approximately HK$2,135,000 (2020: HK$2,434,000) is REBEE-_T-_—F=-A=1T—RHLEFE
recognized in relation to contract liabilities in the year ended 31st ZERNBE(SRRRERNEE AL
March 2021 related to carried forward contract liabilities at the BE) BRI 52,135,000 T (=T
beginning of the reporting period. T ¢ 2,434,000 7T) ©
All of the Group's remaining performance obligations for contracts REEEEPITVNENONMERTE
with customers are for periods of one year or less. As permitted WBEEZBHRER—FINUT - HEE
under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these IS HREERE R AT WEBES
unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed. RTZERBRNENZXHERE -
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6 Other Income and Net Gains

Commission income el

Interest income from bank deposits HRITIF R EIA

Gain on bargain purchase B 2 Y=

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  HE&W2 - FiE L& EH 2 W=
Gross rental income from investment properties 3% &% & A 4258
Government grants (note) BB (B 3E)

Other income E At i A

Management fee received from third parties

A e A B AL i

BRE=TT2EEE

Note:

Under Anti-Epidemic Fund launched by the Hong Kong SAR government,
wage subsidies of approximately HK$6,329,000 related to the Employment
Support Scheme and subsidies of approximately HK$1,360,000 related
to the one-off Retail Sector Subsidy Scheme were recognized in the year
ended 31st March 2021. Other government subsidies of approximately
HK$10,000 were granted to subsidiaries in Hong Kong.

Government subsidies of approximately HK$490,000 granted to
subsidiaries in other jurisdictions were recognized in the year ended 31st
March 2021.

MEE

= 866
29
192
8,189
651

11,398

BEEBFERRNELS [HEEE
¢ HE-_T-_—F=ZA=+—H1t
FE - RBEIGTEEROITEME
#)736,329,0008 7 - ML —RIE[ZEE
B BhE &I | FER 6 & B BIA) 41,360,000
T o BT EANB QA& H BT R
#17510,0007 7T

BE"Z - —F=A=+—HLFE"

BRI T £ th 5% #E [ BT BB A A Y IR
J 48 85 49490,00074 7T ©

ERNEMERAT - —B=-—FFH
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7 Profit/Loss for the Year

Profit/loss for the year has been arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

Costs of inventories expensed

Employee benefit expense (Note 12)

Amortization of intangible assets
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Impairment losses on goodwill

Provision for impairment of trade receivables
(included in general and administrative expenses

Reversal of provision for impairment of
trade receivables (included in general and
administrative expenses)

(Reversal of provision)/provision for impairment of
slow-moving inventories (included in cost of sales)

Expenses related to short-term leases

Auditors’ remuneration

(Gain)/losses on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (included in general and administrative
expenses)

Net foreign exchange gain (included in general and

administrative expenses)

FERAAL
EERAFZ (FHEE12)
B EERH
GREEENE

ME  BERRBTE
EEREER
[EUE 5 AR ZUR B R

(BFFA-RETBREZER)
EYEZERRERERD
(BAFA—REITHRERER)

REFERERERE) BE

(BFFAHERA)
SRR
R 2

HENE  BERREZ
(), BE(EFA—RRE

THERER)
B S W F (2 A

—BRETRERER)

WA R
FNEFEEE MR, (GEA) THE
I8 :

346,516
57,964
31
9,550
2,044
190

208

(119)
(2,797)

5,701
1,120

(29)

(5.976)
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8 Finance Costs

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Interest expense on short-term bank borrowings % HiSR1TEE 2 F 85X
HEBGEZFEMXT

il A

9 Income Tax Expense
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in or
derived from Hong Kong for the year. Taxation on overseas profits
has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year
at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Current income tax
— Hong Kong Profits Tax

BIEARTIS A

—BANEH

P 45 1 B 52
EBREBREFARBBEL LIRS
B2 (A RBORRIR16 5% (—F =%
6 ¢ 16.5%) 2 BRI o BHNETIZ BIA
RE P ERBOE N I A R B
B2 ARER 2 BEHE -

(1,019)

— Overseas taxation —HNETE
— Qver-provision in prior years —BFFERBEEE
Deferred tax (credit)/expense EERE(KR),/FX
— Overseas taxation —BINRIE
Income tax expense FriSFif >

1,950

ERNEMERAT - —B=-—FFH
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9  Income Tax Expense (continued) 9
The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate as follows:

Profit before income tax bR PSR R A

i3 BB X )
REBRFEMAERNZ BERERE
BREMBESE Y BRKERR - &
FlanR

Tax calculated at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 1&2& & 1S5 F & 16.5%

16.5% (2020: 16.5%) (ZZEZZF 1 165%)
FTEZBIE
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMBEIREE 2 HE
operating in other countries RARNEBRERzE
Tax losses of subsidiaries not recognized AR Z B AR
FIAEE
Utilization of previously unrecognized B R S0 Al M R TR
tax losses BIEEE
Over provision in prior years BEFEBBEEME
Others Eth
Income tax expense PS5 32

As the Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda,
it is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until 2035.

As at 31st March 2021, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$90,758,000 (2020: HK$87,789,000) available for
offset against future profits (subject to the approval of the relevant
tax authorities). No deferred tax asset had been recognized in
respect of such tax losses due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The tax losses have no expiry date.
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10

11

Earnings/Loss Per Share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31st
March 2021 is based on the Group's profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company of approximately HK$12,151,000 and the
calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31st March
2020 is based on the Group's loss attributable to equity holders
of the Company of approximately HK$5,729,000. The calculation
was based on the weighted average number of 200,000,000 (2020:
200,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The diluted earnings/(loss) per share is equal to the basic
earnings/(loss) per share as the Company has no dilutive potential
ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 31st March 2021
and 2020.

Dividends

Interim dividend paid of HK cents 0.5
(2020: HK cents 0.5) per ordinary share

Proposed final dividend of HK cents 0.5

(2020: HK cents 0.5) per ordinary share

BRI S

10

11

- 3E A% 05781
(ZEZTF : 0.5%5L)
¥R AR HRR B A% 3 A% 0,578 1L
(ZZE=ZF : 0581)

A EiE
BHEZT-_—F=-A=1+—HIEFEZ
ERERBFDIEADAERER AR
1l 7N £ 3% F 912,151,000 T 5t & -
mMBE-—T-_TF=-A=1+—HLLFE
ZEHREREBIETEARQ 7%&1%75/\
JE 4 7 55 [ /55 $8 495,729,00008 LAt B
ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁé)}%ﬁéimaﬁéﬁaﬁﬂxzm
#E S 159 £1200,000,000 & ( =T = T 4 :
200,000,0008%) °

HRARARRBE_TE_—FR_FT=
EE=ZA=+—BHLEFEIELMNAE
EEETEZEBTERK  MERE
SHERN (BB BgRERRT, (&
18R -

Jit 8

At a meeting held on 13th August 2020, the directors of the
Company proposed a final dividend of HK cents 0.5 per ordinary
share in respect of the year ended 31st March 2020.

At a meeting held on 29th June 2021, the directors of the Company
proposed a final dividend of HK cents 0.5 per ordinary share in
respect of the year ended 31st March 2021. This proposed final
dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in these financial
statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained
profits for the year ending 31st March 2022.

ZENRA+=ZB8T28=

Q

N

RAEEERKNBE_ZT_F
=+ -HALFEZREREER
BAL0.5BAL -

=
N
A

mEHHFr%
Bl

“:_i/\ﬁ] "f’le/‘E"—Eﬁ'Z@%
CARBEFERRNEE-ST = —
A=+—ALFEZRHERKREFTR
ARG o EIEHEUR AR EAMR BT
GRULESHMBERRIEERNRE - g
NeEBZE—_T-—_F=A=+—H1HF
B2 BF @B

> of b R

a ol

ERNEMERAT - —B=-—FFH
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D B i Al B 52

12 Employee Benefit Expense 12

108

Salaries, wages and other benefits 1=
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIRE AN — EREHE FRGTE
Total employee benefit expense B Et&FIF X 4258
(including directors’ remuneration) (BREZH)
(a) Pensions — defined contribution plans (a) BIh&—EFAKEH

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”). The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group
and its employees makes monthly contribution to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The employer's and
employees’ contribution is subject to a cap of monthly earnings of
HK$30,000 (2020: HK$30,000).

Mobicon-Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd., a 95% owned subsidiary
of the Group, has arranged for its employees in Malaysia to join
the Employee Provident Fund Scheme (“the EPF Scheme”). The
EPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by the
government of Malaysia. Under the EPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees make monthly contribution to the scheme
at 13% and 11%, respectively, of the employees’ earnings as
defined under the Employee Provident Fund Act 1991, and the
Group has no further obligations for the actual pension payments
or post-retirement benefits beyond its contributions. The relevant
government agency is responsible for the pension obligation
payable to the retired employees.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2021
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(ZZ=Z4 :30,00087T) °

Mobicon-Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd. ( 4 &
EHEABWER B AR)E RS KA
TRERERHSEEEQNESE(RE
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12
(a)

Employee Benefit Expense (continued)
Pensions — defined contribution plans (continued)
Mobicon-Remote Electronic Pte Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, has arranged for its employees in Singapore to
join the Central Provident Fund Scheme (“the CPF Scheme”). The
CPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by the
government of Singapore. Under the CPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees make monthly contribution to the scheme at
17% and 20%, respectively, of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Central Provident Fund Act, and the Group has no further
obligations for the actual pension payments or post-retirement
benefits beyond its contributions. The relevant government agency
is responsible for the pension obligation payable to the retired
employees.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its
employees in Mainland China as determined by the relevant local
governments, which are defined contribution plans. Contributions
are based on certain percentage of the applicable salaries of its
employees in Mainland China and have no further obligations for
the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond
the annual contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans
are responsible for the pension obligations payable to the retired
employees.

Pursuant to the Labor Pension Act of Republic of China, the Group
contributes its employees in Taiwan of no less than 6% of its
employee’s monthly wages to the employee’s individual pension
account. The Group’s contributions are expensed as incurred.

12
(a)

12 B #& A B 32 )

BIRE — AR (E)
Mobicon-Remote Electronic Pte Ltd. ( 4N £
2EMBRAT)ERFNEEE SR
FRABEFE([RRAEREE]) -
FRABESHEIBETINMBERNTEE 2
EREERGE - BEBEPRAESFE
EEREEEADNEZEERA(EERF
RNFERIE) 217% K 20%E A R ZaT &4
Koo BRUEFRBASN - NE BN EAE A H
BRI EARSIGRKERI 2E—F
Ef - EEBRAKEABEAERRKES
SRR S -

RIBHBOERMROIFAETR  AEE
Ho Bt E 8 i m B K & B R KE &
ERHR - FRRNEARE L RTE
o M EtE RAEBEREE - 1K
BRTENLEEBERFEETESL
FE - BREFEHISN  ARELELMA
ERERINEREIRARRENZE
—FEE - BREPRKAEABER
BREEXTERAKE

BT ERE S TRIKS ] A%
EREAEIER Y EARKSESER
RORZLLEE T A TE 2 B o A&
SR 8] 2 GEEROEE B S B o
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13 Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 13 #H &K FEITBABZ#MSE
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the BHEZZZ—F=A=1+—RH1IEFE "
year ended 31st March 2021 is set out below: BEERTETHRABZMEHIINT :

Executive directors HITES

Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure HalgE Lt
(chairman) (F/E)

Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl BEELZ Tt
(deputy chairman and (BIFEF#TEAEZ)
chief executive officer)

Mr. Hung Ying Fung HRELE

Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix HERLE

Independent non-executive BIHTES

directors
Mr. Charles E. Chapman Charles E. Chapman’t 4
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung RIEFEL
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric HIKEEE
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13

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments
(continued)
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the
year ended 31st March 2020 is set out below:

13

HELRFESTHRABZHE
(%)

BHE_Z_ZF=-A=+—HLFE "
BEERETBITHRABZMESHIIMT ¢

Executive directors HITEE
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure HRledt

(chairman) () - - - -
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Bery! BBt

(deputy chairman and (Bl EEFITHAEE)

chief executive officer) = = S S
Mr. Hung Ying Fung HEZESEE = 200 8 208
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix HERLA = 200 8 208
Independent non-executive BAFHTES

directors
Mr. Charles E. Chapman Charles E. Chapman5t 4 80 = = 80
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung 2EFEL 120 - - 120
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric HKEEAE 80 - - 80

280 400 16 696

Note:

During the year ended 31st March 2021, four directors (2020: two) of the Group
waived emoluments in an aggregate amount of approximately HK$600,000
(2020: approximately HK$200,000). No incentive payment for joining the Group or
compensation for loss of office was paid or payable to any director during the year

(2020: Nil).

B -

REBEE-_Z-_—4=-A=1+—BLEE 4%
ENEER(ZT_TF : ME)HEWEeEH
#9600,000/8 70 (ZZ ZF4F : £9200,000%87T) ° F
A BEBNRENTEAES 2 REREE -
ERBEMAREE RN 2 REXBHRHE(ZS =T
Fm)o

ERAEEERLAT - —B=-—F5FH

111
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13 Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 13 #FEEFTEITHABZME

(continued) (%)

Five highest paid individuals hakmHes AL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the FR - AEEREREFATTE(ZE
Group for the year include no (2020: nil) executive director whose —EF E)YPTES  HEeRR E
emoluments are set out above. Details of the remuneration for the X - BTREB(ZE_TF : AZ)KIHE
year of the remaining five (2020: five) highest paid employees who RRAREENIEIBTRABZESH
are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as EEZFERNFMFBET -

follows:

Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind #4& - 2B R EMEYEF]
Employer’s contributions to defined ERH G E 2 BEHRK
contribution scheme

The emoluments of each of these highest paid individuals whose FMNFUTHBEzZ&ESHFALTZHE
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: BT

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,00078 7T
During the year, no emoluments were paid to the above individual FR - WERELATIAMESERR
as inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation SR S AR DA AN &R B B 2 2@ 3K
for loss of office (2020: Nil). ERBEREE(ZZE_TF : &) -
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14 Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment

14 W3-~ Bm LU ARHE
(a)

E BN VT ]

Year ended 31st March 2020 BE2-_E_EE

ZAZ+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FNREFE 8,521 18,835 7192 1,708 304 30,160
Exchange differences EREE (1,703) (737) (66) (106) (139) (2.747)
Additions NE - "7 251 51 546 1431
Written off ] - - - (45) - (45)
Transfer to right-of-use assets BREFRELSE - - - (31) - (31)
Surplus on revaluation B R - 9 - - - 95
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAR - - 50 66 449 565
Disposals HE - - - (3 (181) (184)
Depreciation e - (421) (305) (1,075) (129) (1,930)
Closing net book amount FREEDFE 6,818 17,889 728 1,025 854 27,314
At31st March 2020 R-B-E£=f=1-H
Cost or valuation KAMES E{E 6,818 18219 19,999 17,091 3,020 65,147
Accumulated depreciation Z:HE - (330) (19.271) 16,066) (2,166) (37.833)
Net book amount FHFE 6,818 17,889 128 1,025 854 21314
Year ended 31st March 2021 Bz-E--F

ZREt-HLFE
Opening net book amount FOREEE 6,818 17,689 728 1,025 854 27314
Exchange differences EHEE 1,440 1,105 4 83 125 2,797
Additions NE - - 115 755 157 1,027
Surplus on revaluation B R - 45 - - - 45
Disposals HE - - - (8 (24) (32)
Depreciation e - (575) (270) 965) (234) (2,044)
Closing net book amount FRERFE 8,258 18,464 617 890 878 29,107
At31st March 2021 R-B--f=R=1-AH
Cost or valuation KAEREE 8,258 19,271 2033 18,193 3,250 69,307
Accumulated depreciation ESRiE - (807) (19,718) (17,303) (2,372) (40,200)
Net book amount EEFE 8,258 18,464 617 890 878 29,107

ERNEMERAT - —B=-—FFH
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Ao T A 2 A P

14 Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases
(continued)

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31st March 2021 and 2020
of the above assets is as follows:

2021

At cost
At valuation b

2020

14

(a)

14,591

4,680

1921

(%)

Wik - B Bkl (&)

TR EER T —FRIFEF=
A=+—HZAREREESTHT

20,3% 18,193

20,33 18,193

At cost AR 6,618 13,646 19,999 17,091 3000 60,574
At valuation i S 4573 S = S 4573
6,818 18,219 19,999 17,01 300 66,147

The leasehold properties are located outside Hong Kong and held
under a long-term lease.

At 31st March 2021, had the leasehold properties of the Group
been carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation, the
carrying values would have been approximately HK$2,467,000
(2020: HK$2,375,000).

At 31st March 2021, leasehold properties with net book amount
of approximately HK$4,680,000 (2020: HK$4,573,000) have been
pledged to secure certain banking facilities granted by a bank to
a subsidiary amounting to approximately HK$4,166,000 (2020:
HK$4,074,000).

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2021
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RZEBE-—F=A=+—H " HExEHF
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B BIBEEAEK O AE24670008T(=F
— T4 2 2,375,000 7T) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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14

(@)

(i)

Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases
(continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

The fair value of the Group's leasehold properties at 31st March
2021 and 2020 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on that date by an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected with the Group. The independent valuer is a
member of Singapore Institute of Surveyors and Valuers, and has
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation
of similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuations were
arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties.

The Group's policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Valuation basis

Valuation processes

The Group obtains independent valuations for its leasehold
properties at least annually. In the current year, the valuations are
performed by an independent firm of professional valuer. At the
end of each reporting period, the directors update their assessment
of the fair value of each leasehold property, taking into account
the most recent independent valuations. The directors review
the valuations performed by an independent valuer for financial
reporting purposes. Discussions of valuation processes and results
are held between the directors and valuer at least annually, in line
with the Group’s annual report date.

At each financial year end the directors:

(i) Verify all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

(i) Assess leasehold properties valuations movements when
compared to prior year valuation report; and

(iii) Hold discussions with the independent valuer.

14

(a)

(i)

W - Wb Kt A & LB
(&)

Yo ~ W Bt (40)
AREREPER T - —FR=-F=
TE=A=t-BZAFENBRREL
EELWAE 2 BILABREEEER
RZ AT EEMER - BULIitERD
AFIMRARMRGEEMGERE - £
BRRBAENEEETAATEYE
RE SR - FREENELERAA
MR B TS BB R -

AEBCBRRERSIBRBHEZEMHNIE
MECELEEARRBRITFESRZIEA
K -

FRFE—F
EAEMER -

FERRE=FzBEIL

1 EEE

eEERF
AEERIBF-AREHEEYMESK
BUEE RAFE  ARGEHREL
EXMBEMTET REBRSHEE
HR EFeEHMRFHEBREENE
RNFEZFHE  EREFEROZBY
BE BEFEMBLGHEMETZME
B AEEHMBRR - EEEEER
RLBF-REAANEEFHAHTH
BERFRER -

REEHRFER - EFF :

(i) REBYGMERSTHMBELIE
AR

EREFREZGEERSEL

(ii) B
B SRR E 2 S
K

(i) BB {AERMEITAW °

ERNEMERAT - —B=-—FFH
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14 Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases 14

(continued)

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) (a)
Valuation basis (continued)

(if) Valuation techniques (ii)

The fair value of the leasehold properties of the Group held for
own use as at 31st March 2021 and 2020 are classified as Level 2
valuations.

The fair value of leasehold properties for own use is determined
using market comparison approach by reference to recent sales
price and rental of comparable properties on a price per square
feet basis using market data which is publicly available.

The Group leases machinery under non-cancellable lease
agreements and the lease term is 5 years.

(b) Leases (b)
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a
lessee.

(i) Amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of (i)
financial position

Right-of-use assets

Yok ~ Wb KBt i DL il B
(%)

Pk~ R BB ()

HEEE(E)

e A
R-B-—ER-F-FF=A=+—
A AEEH AR AENEIAT
ERAEAE—RIEE -

EREENEZAFTENERTSLER
EEE  EE2EAHRLEMEEBE
RAHABRRBZTHEHREFITR
EBREEFE OINEERES -

ZK‘*@*E?T‘“TT%&%?E HEEE
 FHEI A HAREE -

i~y
AR HAEBEARBAZRE
Bt

REGEHBNRRERERZ T

Retail stores, office premises and TEEH WRAEMEKR
warehouses iéf%‘

Office equipment N

Lease Liabilities HESE

Current BNER

Non-current JERNER

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ended
31st March 2021 were approximately HK$4,263,000 (2020:
HK$6,356,000).
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14

(b)
(ii)

(iii)

Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases 14 3% ~ Wi kit k&
(continued) (&)

Leases (continued) by HMEE)

Amount recognized in the consolidated statement of profit (i) RESBEHEAER 24

or loss

The consolidated statement of profit or loss shows the following FEBRRHEIITIEBEERM s &8
amounts relating to leases:

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FHREEENERS
Retail stores, office premises and TEER  HRAEVER
warehouse =0}

Office equipment /N

v

1

o
HE

Interest expense (included in finance costs) FERSZ (BT ABERA)

Expenses relating to short-term leases HGHIHE R 2 AX
(included in general and administrative (BEFA—f &
expenses) TRERER)

Expenses relating to variable lease payments BTGt ATHE

not included in lease liabilities (included in NREBFEX(BEtA

1,674

general and administrative expenses) —BRITHERER)
Note: B 3E -
The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31st March 2021 was REBEE_TE-_—F=A=+—HIFE #HEZ
approximately HK$15,566,000 (2020:HK$15,366,000). BEMmHABELA15566,0008 T(ZT=_FF :

15,366,000/ 7T ) ©

The Group's leasing activities and how these are accounted  (jjij) ZKEFHEITEHREBHEZARE

for 7

The Group leases retail stores, office premises, warehouses and AREEBHEHFESEES  BAEY
equipment. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of ¥ .EARNE Y —RET AR E
110 b years. E55F o

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain BEKZIERGEER 20 a5%
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease BRI REY B THBEARBS
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security CHEBED IEFREZRIN  BERZ
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased WA IE R 2 - MEZETA AE
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes. BB o

BERAEEERLAR - —B=—FFR
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14

(b)
(iv)

(v)

(vi)

15

Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Variable lease payments

Leases of the Group do not contain variable payment terms that are
linked to an index or a rate.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of
property leases across the Group. These are used to maximize
operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the
Group's operations. The majority of extension and termination
options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor.

Residual value guarantees
The Group did not provide residual value guarantees in relation to
leases during the year ended 31st March 2021 (2020: Nil).

Investment Properties

Non-current asset — at fair value
Opening balance at 1st April

Exchange differences M R
Fair value loss NFEEE

14

(b)
(iv)

(v)

(vi)

15

FRBDEE-EAVE
RO A—RZF&eH

AR YT YL
(%)

iN-ACD)

I EEET
AEBHEY RS REHIATH
SRR A B FRAGRSR o

JE/R RA L EIERE
AEBZEMERERSER K ILE
B RERAKREEBEEMERZ
BEMS  ZSEERDANEBERS
BIEZEEN - FINANABOERR
RIPEERETAAKREMIEEBELHE
AITHE -

FIEHEEIER
RBE-_Z-_—F=A=+—HLF
B AEBEYEEHEBEENRBRE
EER(ZZ_FTF ) -

BEWE

Closing balance at 31st March

W=R=+—H2 !

R4E

WX A BN

Gross rental income from
investment properties
Less: Direct operating expenses from
investment properties that generated
rental income

REMFEHESWALRE

o EEHSWAZIRE
MEZBEREERX
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15

(a)

Investment Properties (continued)

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31st March
2021 and 2020 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on that date by an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected with the Group. The independent valuer is a
member of Singapore Institute of Surveyors and Valuers, and has
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation
of similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuations were
arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties.

At 31st March 2021, investment properties with aggregate amount
of approximately HK$4,623,000 (2020: HK$4,518,000) have been
pledged to secure certain banking facilities granted by a bank to
a subsidiary amounting to approximately HK$4,166,000 (2020:
HK$4,074,000).

The fair value change is included in “general and administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Valuation basis

Valuation processes

The Group obtains independent valuations for its investment
properties at least annually. In the current year, the valuations are
performed by an independent firm of professional valuer. At the
end of each reporting period, the directors update their assessment
of the fair value of each investment property, taking into account
the most recent independent valuations. The directors review
the valuations performed by an independent valuer for financial
reporting purposes. Discussions of valuation processes and results
are held between the directors and valuer at least annually, in line
with the Group's annual report date.

As at 31st March 2021 and 2020, the directors:

(i) Verify all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

(ii) Assess investment properties valuations movements when
compared to prior year valuation report; and

(iii) Hold discussions with the independent valuer.

15

(a)

BEWE 2)
EEEREMER T _—FR-_FT—
EEZA=ZT-BZAFEDIREAR
SEYEMBEZBYABRERMGERRD
RZBETZHEMERE - BILEER
REMFAEMREENHRESE @ &£
ERMHREMELETAAAEESR
RIIMER - BRABENK2ERE
E D SEPADE Y b S(l

RZTEZ—F=RF=+—H "  LLHELD
4,623,000/ L (Z T ZZ4F : 4518, 000,%
T ZREMEDEER  ERRITET
BB AT &4 454,166,008 T (- T =
T 14,074,000870) 2 B THRITRVE 23K
e

NI EZHARGA RS
EREBEMIAT -

@R [~ R RITH

i 4 3 e
1 EEF
AEERIBF-RAREREVESK

BIfhE RAFE  ARMEERBL
BEXMBEMTET REBRSHEE
HR BFEgTMRSFHRAREDE
RFEZFHE  BEREFERROZBY
HE - EFEMNBULGHEMETZME
B ABELMEHRR - EFE(EER

RLEBF-REAAEEFHAYTH
HERF R A

n= Ezfiﬁ_?_?ﬁ A=+—
H &%

m

HH]H#

(i) REBUGHERSTHORAAEEXN
WARUR

(ii) EREBAEFEZMAERSHEL
B AEREMEZHERD
K

(jii) SEERETTR W ©

ERNEMERAT - —B=-—FFH
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15 Investment Properties (continued)
Valuation basis (continued)

(b)  Valuation techniques
The fair value of the investment properties of the Group held to
earn rentals as at 31st March 2021 and 2020 are classified as Level
2 valuations.

The fair value of investment properties is determined using market
comparison approach by reference to recent sales price and rental
of comparable properties on a price per square feet basis using
market data which is publicly available.

The Group's interests in investment properties at their net book
values are analyzed as follows:

Leases of between 10 and 50 years:

FAENT10FE505 ¢
— Properties held outside Hong Kong —EEBRINEEZME

15

(b)

BREWME =)

AL ()

1 EE
RZBEZ—FRZFE_TF=A=+—
B AEBZAEUABRDES ZREDE
ZAFEESERE LA -

BREWMEZ AFETNERTHHLBOAE
EERSEAHLBYEEBERT
HARBB 2T HERIZETFHRER
EEGEZMHEERES

REEBZREMERZ(ERERFE) D
waoF :
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15

(c)

(d)

Investment Properties (continued) 15 #®E&EWHk )

Valuation basis (continued) (A RE % (48)

Fair value hierarchy (c) RFEER

The following tables present the investment properties of the TREIRZZEZ—FRZFT_ZTF=
Group carried at fair value by valuation method as at 31st March A=+—BitEFZESAEBIEZA
2021 and 2020: TEIR 2 REYE

2021 —B--fF
Recurring fair value measurements & EHHI A LG E

— Properties held outside —EBRBBIMNFEZ
Hong Kong mE
2020 —E-BF
Recurring fair value measurements &% M)A T(EH &
— Properties held outside —EBRBRIMNFEZ
Hong Kong mE - 4518 - 4,518
- 4518 = 4,518
The Group's policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out REBEZHERRSIBER ZEHRIF
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change RENBEERRARNTESRZEA
in circumstances that caused the transfer. REg -
There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year. FAN B BZRRE=H AL
R BB o
Leasing arrangement (d  HEZH
The Group leases out investment properties under operating AEBBEBESCEHELHEEEDE B
leases with rentals payable monthly. The leases run for a period SEBAXN EHEBEERBWFE - B
of 2 years. None of the leases include variable lease payment. WHEAGEHENR - BREMEHREZE
For minimum lease payment receivables on leases of investment W S KA S RIB IR M 273 58 -

properties are disclosed in Note 27.

ERNEMERAT - —B=-—FFH
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Year ended 31st March 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o B R M
16 Goodwill and other intangible assets 16 B2 B H i S8 &

BE_ZT_ZTF

ZA=t-HLERFE

Opening net book amount FEYEE R E - - _
Exchange differences N =5 (47) (14) (61)
Additions NE - 114 114
Acquisition of a subsidiary U B — R B AT 218 - 218
Amortization charge BRI = (37) (37)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 171 63 234
At 31st March 2020 R-ZE-ZTF=A=+-—H
Cost ANE 17 114 285
Accumulated amortization and REEHORE

impairment = (51) (51)
Net book amount AR E 171 63 234
Year ended 31st March 2021 BE-—_ZT-_—&

ZA=Z+—HLFE

Opening net book amount FOREFE
Exchange differences M R
Additions VNS
Impairment loss recognised in the year 4 AR E E1E
Amortization charge BEMA
Closing net book amount FREEEFE

At 31st March 2021

Cost

Accumulated amortization and
impairment

R=B=-—$=ZH=+-H
DN
RETHHNORE

Net book amount

FREFE

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2021
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16

Goodwill and other intangible assets
(continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated
to an individual CGU in the trading and distribution of electronic
components, electrical components and equipment by Swan
Electrical (Pty) Limited (“Swan").

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash generating unit ("CGU")
identified according to country of operation and operating segment
as follows:

16

Electronic Trading Business — South Africa ETEEES—MIE

7 e LAt 8 T B E )

BTETREAR  BHECESERY
2 Swan Electrical (Pty) Limited ([ Swan]) & &
RAHEETFITHE  ERTERERZE
NIRGEEEA -

BENEEASEREERRIEED
MmAEE < REELEMN - FHBEWT:

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based
on value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on a business forecast approved by management
covering a 5-year period, and pre-tax discount rate of 18.5%
(2020: 17.6%). The CGU's cash flows beyond the 5-year period are
extrapolated at 3% (2020: 3%) growth rate. Revenue growth rate
are based on the directors’ best estimate on the average growth
rate of the industry. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculation relate to the estimate of cash inflows/outflows which
include budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is based
on the past performance and management’s expectation for the
market development. During the year ended 31st March 2021, the
recoverable amount of the CGU was assessed to be less than the
carrying amount due to the challenges and uncertainties resulting
from the strategy adjustment in the future development of this CGU
by the Group. The management determined an impairment loss of
approximately HK$190,000 (2020: Nil) for the year. No impairment
of the other assets in this CGU is considered necessary as there is
no other material assets subject to impairment in this CGU.

FHBEeELEN 2 JKESEDIRE
FREBEFEELET  HIZBREBEED
BEZ AFHPRERBAZESRER
BIETE - MATAGIRE A185%(ZE=F
& 1176%) » e EABMBIBRF M
ZIHRERBAAERERIN(ZT T F ¢
3%)HEHE - W ERDIREEEHT
EFHRERZEEMETMET - £
BENEEZZEMBRBR S RBESR
A/ Rz BIEBEHEERE
FE - BEGAIREBARRRER
BHMEBHE2EHMEL - REZE=
T_—FZA=Z+—HLEFE BHRK
EEARZESESXEMNMARERR
AR R THERE  ZRESELE
BUMAIMESERTARREDE -
FA - BIEE TR EEIE 190,000
T(ZEZTF ) HRZRBRAESEAE
BuPHELMEXREEATHE K
REDBARZASELBMTHEME
EEEITRIE -

ERNEMERAT - —B=-—FFH
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17

Subsidiaries

Details of the subsidiaries as at 31st March 2021 and 2020, all of
which are held indirectly by the Company (except for Mobicon (BVI)
Limited which is held directly by the Company), are as follows:

APlus Computer Holdings
Limited

APlus 2 Computer Limited
REFERERAA

APower Holdings Limited
REREERRAT

AESI (HK) Limited
K-RH(ER)
N

Langa Holdings (Proprietary

Limited

Mantech Electronics
(Proprigtary] Limited

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company

ABRAES  ARAT

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&% ARAH

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&% ARAH

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&% ARAH

Republic of South Africa,
limited liability company

BHELAE - BRATF

Republic of South Africa,
limited liability company

BHELAE - BRATF

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2021

Investment holding in Hong Kong

RERETREER

17

Trading and distribution of computer

products and mobile accessories

in Hong Kong
REBETERERR
FRENEERNH

Trading and distribution of computer

products, cosmetic products and

mabile accessories in Hong Kong

REBETERED (LHaR

FHEHEEEN#

Provision of information technology

services in Hong Kong

REBREAARERS

Investment holding in South Africa

REETREALR

Trading and distribution of electronic
components, electrical components

and equipment in South Africa

REFEAEF M ERLH

LEREEENS

FE} 8§ 2> W]
RZEZ—FR-ZFE-_FTF=RA=+—
B MBAR(FHAARMERSE(E
Mobicon (BVI) LimitedpR 4p - EFRA QA FEH
BEA)FHBET

Ordinary USD800,000 100% 100%
EBIR800,0003 T

Ordinary HK$1,000 100% 100%
LEK1000ETT

Ordinary HK$500,000 60% 60%
L33 1500 0008 T

Ordinary HK$1,000 100% 100%
LEK1 0005

Ordinary South 61% 61%

African Rand ("ZAR") 100

LRRI0EFES

Ordinary ZAR 100 61% 61%
LRRI0EFES
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17 Subsidiaries (continued)

MBM Properties (Proprietary)

Limited

MCU Power Limited
REBHRLA

Milliard Devices Limited
FERTHBRAR

Mobicon (BVI) Limited

Mabicon (Taiwan) Limited

BEEREIRNERAA

Mobicon Agent Limited
ERNIREERAT

Republic of South Africa,
limited liability company

BHELAE - BRAF

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

Bk BRAA

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

Bk BRAA

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company

RERLES  BRAT

Republic of China,
limited liability company

hERE ARAF

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

B BRAH

17

Trading and distribution of electronic
components, electrical components
and equipment in South Africa

REFETS TN ERTH
RESEEENH

Trading and distribution of electronic
components, electrical components
and equipment in Hong Kong

REBEAE TN BRARH
RESEEENH

Trading and distribution of electronic
components, electrical components
and equipment in Hong Kong

REBEAE TN BRARH
RESEEENH

Investment holding in Hong Kong

RERENREER

Trading and distribution of electronic
components, electrical components
and equipment in Taiwan

REEEAETLH  BRLH

REREEESH

Trading and distribution of electronic
components, electrical components
and equipment in Hong Kong

REBENEFRMN  BRRM

RESEEEDH

B 24 o)

Ordinary ZAR 100
ERRI0EHERE

Ordinary HK$1,000,000
T@IR1,000,00078 7T

Ordinary HK$1,000,000
T@IR1,000,00078 7T

Ordinary USD10,000
LAR0000ET

Ordinary New Taiwan dollar
5,000,000
LER5000 0005141

Ordinary HK$10,000
LAR00003T

ERNEMERAT - —B=-—FFH

61%

100%

0%

100%

100%

100%

61%

100%

10%

100%

100%

100%
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17 Subsidiaries (continued) 17 MWEBAWE 2

Mobicon Electronic Trading PRC, wholly-owned Trading and distribution of electronic ~ Registered capital 100% 100%
(Shenzhen) Limited foreign enterprise components, electrical components HK$2,000,000
(Note (i) hE - NERELE and equipment in the PRC M EA2,0000008
ERRETES(RI) RPBEAE TN BRARH
RRAT (HE) RESEEENH
Mobicon Holdings Limited Hong Kong, Trading and distribution of electronic ~ Ordinary HK$10 100% 100%
ERNIETEERR AR limited liability company components, electrical components IR 107E T
% BRAA and equipment in Hong Kong
REBEAE TN BRARH
RESEERDH
Mobicon International Limited  British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary USD100 100% 100%
limited liability company REBETRERR LRRI0ET

RBRLES  BRAT

Mobicon Malaysia Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary USD1 100% 100%
limited liability company RERETRERR LERIET
ZERNER  ARAT
Mobicon-Mantech Holdings British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary USD1,000 61% 61%
Limited limited liabilty company RERETRARR LHR000ET

RBRAES  BRAT

Mobicon-Remote Electronic ~ Republic of Singapore, Trading and distribution of electronic ~ Ordinary Singaporean 100% 100%
Pte Ltd. limited liability company components, electrical components — dollar 300,000
FINREAE - ARAT and equipment in Singapore ERR00 0003 T
R TEF Ll -
BRTHRESEEANH
Mobicon-Remote Electronic ~ Malaysia, Trading and distribution of electronic  Ordinary Malaysian 95% 95%
Sdn. Bhd. limited liability company components, electrical components — Ringgit 1,000,000
SRES  BRAR and equipment in Malaysia £11,000,000
RERBTETE Ll BREEMEH
BRTHRESEEANH
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17 Subsidiaries (continued)

Narciso Gomes - Componentes
Electronicos Lda

Partners 2 Limited

Swan Electrical (Pty) Limited

Switch Technique KZN
Proprietary Limited

Videocom Technology
(HK) Limited
BBt (ES)ERAR

Portugal,
limited liability company

FE8%  ARLA

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company

RERLES  BRAT

Republic of South Africa,
limited liability company

BHEANE  BRAT

Republic of South Africa, limited
liability company

BHEANE  BRAT

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

B ARAT

17

Trading and distribution of electronic
components, electrical components
and equipment in Portugal

REBTEME TN
ERTHRESEERNH

Investment holding in Hong Kong

REBETRERR

Trading and distribution of electronic
components, electrical components
and equipment in South Africa

REFETE TN ERLH

RESEEENH

Trading and distribution of electronic
components, electrical components
and equipment in South Africa

REFETE TRl ERLH

REREERNH

Trading of cosmetic products
in Hong Kong
RERETIIRER

Y UNTIES

Ordinary EURO 1,221,000
ERR1,221 000872

Ordinary USD100

LRRI00ET

Ordinary ZAR 1,000

R 000E SRS

Ordinary ZAR 100
LRRI0EH R

Ordinary HK$2
LERAT

ERNEMERAT - —B=-—FFH

%

100%

65%

15%

100%

31%

100%

65%

75%

100%

127



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao T A 2 A P

17

Subsidiaries (continued)
Note:

(i) The subsidiary has a financial year-end date falling on 31st December
in accordance with the local statutory requirements, which is not
coterminous with the Group. The consolidated financial statements of the
Group were prepared based on the financial statements of the subsidiary
for the twelve months ended 31st March 2021 and 2020.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any time
during the year ended 31st March 2021 (2020: Nil).

Material non-controlling interests

As at 31st March 2021, the total non-controlling interest
is approximately HK$47,720,000 (2020: HK$35,200,000), of
which approximately HK$33,384,000 (2020: HK$26,474,000)
is for Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(“Mobicon-Mantech Group”) in relation to the Group’s business in
South Africa. The non- controlling interest in respect of the other
subsidiary is not material.

Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with
material non-controlling interest
Set out below are the summarized financial information for the
subsidiary, Mobicon-Mantech Group that has a non-controlling
interest that is material to the Group.

Summarized statement of financial position

17

bt & A Wl c42)

MEE -

(i) RIBE AT - ZH B R A 2K
FE#ERBAT-_A=+—8 E2X&E
B T—H - AEBZEGAEMBHRERTD
BREZNBRABE-T=-_—FK_F
—EF=ZA=t+—BLh+=-REAZHE
REmE -

EMBRAANRBE_Z-_—F=A
=t HALFERAEAERBEEAD
BITZEBEERN (T _FF  §) -

oK Ik P A 4
RZBZ—F=A=+—08 - JEE®#E
SEABFE XY 47,720,000 T ( — B - T4 ¢
35,200,0007% 7T ) - H A #733,384,000 % 7T
(ZZ =4 :26,474,000/8 7T ) B A
£ @ 79 IF 2 7% 2 Mobicon-Mantech Holdings
Limited X £ B & /2 7] ([ Mobicon-Mantech £
E]) o BB ARz IEERERL T
EX

EBEEAFZRER ZH BT 2T
T X 51 B /& /A ] Mobicon-Mantech & & 2
B ERHEZE - Mobicon-Mantech®E B B8
HWAREEM S BEAZ IEIRMES -

HBERREBE

70,2717
(26,299)

Current B
Assets BE
Liabilities afE
Total current net assets MENVE ER AL

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2021
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17

Subsidiaries (continued)

Material non-controlling interests (continued)
Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with
material non-controlling interest (continued)

Summarized statement of financial position (continued)

Pt & 2> Wl )

TR IR PR HE RS (42)
AEEAHZRER B R ZHE
ERIHE ()

BERREEE(F)

Non-current AR E
Assets BE
Liabilities BE

23,146 21,848
(2,982) (4,030)

Total non-current net assets

FEMEE B FE M

20,164

Net assets BEEFE

79,205

Summarized statement of comprehensive income PENGRGE

Revenue 109,362

Profit before income tax B B 1S B A i 7 5,702
Income tax expense FiiSRifas (1,746)

F R 3,956 11,978
Hiz2mEBA (FX) 13,453 (14,044)

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income/(expense)

FRAZEBA
(B 48 17,409 (2,066)

Total comprehensive income/(expense)
for the year

DT IR R
EEBA(FX) B

Total comprehensive income/(expense)
allocated to non-controlling interests

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BRI R 2 IR 2

BERAEEERAR - —B=—FFR 129



130

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao T A 2 A P

17

Subsidiaries (continued)

17

Material non-controlling interests (continued)

Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with
material non-controlling interest (continued)

Summarized statement of cash flows

Pt I 2> W )

TR IR PR HE 25 (%)
AEEAHZRER B LT ZHE
ERIHE ()

HenBERE

Cash flows from operating activities REEBEECHERE
Cash generated from/(used in) operations s ELE (BB 2
e (6,955)
Overseas income tax paid BN SR (3.717)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating Rk EL S (BR) 2
activities e EH (10,672)
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing BEEE(EBA)EE2
activities e FE8 620
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing BMEEE(FAH) EET
activities bk 9,455

Net decrease in cash and cash

RERRSSENRLFE

equivalents (597)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FY S RIELEEY

the year 6,482
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EREE T2 (1,192)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ~ FR ZIH& MRS ZEY

The information above is the amount before inter-company

eliminations.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2021
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18

19

Inventories 18

Electronic components, electrical components

BTl - WRTHR

EEE

159,776 138,592
14,740 13,556
12,074 13,884

186,590 166,032

and equipment &S
Computer products and mabile accessories B S F R
Cosmetic products bt
Trade Receivables 19

The Group normally grants to its customers credit periods for
sales of goods ranging from 7 to 90 days. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables, net of allowance for credit losses,
presented based on due dates:

0 to 60 days TE60H
61 to 120 days 612120H
121 to 180 days 1212180H
181 to 365 days 1812365H

JRE W B &) M ik
RNEB-—RBRETHEP2EEEEHHT
BZEOHTE - REHAERY| 2 IR
ZEoORFEBNREEBERE)ERS
W :

47,762

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
fair values of trade receivables. There is no concentration of credit
risk with respect to trade receivables as the Group has a large
number of customers. The Group does not hold any collateral as
security in respect of its trade receivables.

RBEEEHMARZEREERR SR
WEBERZAFE - ARAEEEF
BERZ  HEREZIERFLEEES
Rk o AEEILEEEKE SRR
Fr A TR (E R

ERNEMERAT - —B=-—FFH
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19

20

21

Trade Receivables (continued) 19 EWHESEX®)
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure REEEATETBHRELEREIT T
lifetime ECL allowance for all trade receivables. BILRIE A ERABMERKE SRR

e MRREREERRE -

Information about the impairment of trade receivables and the FHERWRESRFAERASEREDN
Group's exposure to credit risk can be found in Note 3.1(b). BEE AR ERHEMES(D) -
Cash and Bank Balances 20 BERBEFHMEY

Cash at bank and in hand HRITRFHERS
Cash and bank balances of the Group include an amount REBE 2 R e KIRITHE R B IEA)2,454,000
of approximately HK$2,454,000 (2020: HK$2,052,000) was BIL(ZZEZFF 1 2,052,000 70) AAR
denominated in Renminbi and kept in Mainland China. The BEETE R TR R B R 2 558 o Wi
conversion of these Renminbi denominated balances into foreign ZEUARBBEZEH#HABINE RIEZ
currencies and the remittance of these funds out of Mainland EESELFBEAM - BAZPBEBNHE
China is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange BEYINE B HERR AR BIPAIRIR
control promulgated by the PRC government.
Trade Payables 21 JEAHE B MR
The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: B SRFERRDITIT

0 to 60 days LTE60H 33,650 29,892
61 to 120 days 61Z=120H 3,551
121 to 180 days 1212180H 2,550
181 to 365 days 1812365 H 1,234

40,985

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2021
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22

23

Loan From a Shareholder 22
The amount is unsecured, interest free and was repayable on
demand.

Short-Term Bank Borrowings 23

Short-term bank loans MHIRTTER
Bank overdrafts RITEX

Jie 3R B K
EEFEREERN  REREEENRE
i o

701 BRAT A B

All short-term bank borrowings are due within one year and
denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollar BT
US dollar ETT
Euro B 7E
Singapore dollar N3 T
South African Rand EEa ks

ERMRITEESR —FREE - 1
ATHIEREEHE -

The effective interest rates of the short-term bank borrowings at
the reporting date range from approximately 2.13% to 7.0% (2020:
3.14% t0 7.0%).

The Group’s certain banking facilities are secured by the leasehold
properties (Note 14) and investment properties (Note 15) of the
Group.

RER  RHETEEZERRIX
NF49213%ET0%( = =FF : 3.14%
Z7.0%) °

AEEETRIMENREBRZEEY
E(MaE14) IR B (P RE15) 1R -

ERNEMERAT - —B=-—FFH
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23

24

Short-Term Bank Borrowings (continued)

As at 31st March 2020, the Group was technically in breach
of covenant for an outstanding bank loan of approximately
HK$13,000,000 under a loan agreement with a bank as the Group's
tangible net worth were less than that required by the Bank. The
Bank has not made any demand for immediate repayment of the
loan since the breach of covenant. If the loan would be demanded
for immediate payment, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the Group has sufficient financial resources to repay
the loan without hindering the operating cash flow for several
months.

During the year ended 31st March 2021, the Group has fully repaid
the bank loan.

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Analysis of deferred tax liabilities as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

BRI R G

23

24

MBI R )
RZBE-_TE=A=+H AR K&EE
ZHEREAEFEERRITZHAEER
MU AREEERN FER T BZIRTH
ARMERGEETAEREERITER
#913,0000008 T 2 5% - BERZHE
B RBRTTEEEBERNKEREH
BERZAMER - WEEBRKNREES
HMER  ARAESERALEEAER
B ER  BRABEEBRER

TEHARREANKLLEREREBK
FE o

RBE-_ZFT-_-—F=A=+—HLF
B ARBECEBERRITER -

3B SE 38 JH £ 13
BEBERBEAHMT -

Deferred tax liahilities are expected to be recoverable and settled
after one year.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2021
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24 Deferred Tax Liabilities (continued) 24 BEBHAEE)
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year were as RERBEEERERNZEHAT ¢
follows:

As at 1st April 2019 RZE—-NFHA—H = = =
Exchange differences P& Z%8 (552) (34) (586)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BE KT B A 7 2,671 - 2,671
Charged to consolidated PR A B R T

statement of profit or loss - 194 194

As at31st March 2020 and HR-ZEZ-_E&£=HF=+—H

1st April 2020 E—ZE_ZFWA—H
Exchange differences =58
Credited to consolidated FFALREEER

statement of profit or loss

As at 31st March 2021 N-—B-_—H=H=+—H

25 Share Capital

Authorized: JERE

2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each & A& E{E0.10/% T2

3% 2,000,000,0000% 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BT R
200,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each &R E{E0.10/ T2

382 200,000,000%

BERAEEERAR - —B=—FFR 135
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26 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 26

Cash Flows

Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash generated

from operations:

Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
— Amortization of intangible assets
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets
— (Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
— Write-off of property, plant and equipment
— Impairment losses on goodwill
— Interest income
— Interest expense
— (Reversal of provision)/provision for
impairment of slow-moving inventories
— Provision for impairment of trade
receivables
— Reversal of provision for impairment of
trade receivables
— Fair value loss on investment properties
— Gain on bargain purchase

Changes in working capital:
— Inventories
— Trade receivables
— Other receivables and deposits
— Trade payables
— Other payables and accruals
— Contract liabilities

B FTS B AT A
ATIHE Z R
— B EERH
0% - BELRENE
—EREEENE
—HEME - BB M&E
Zz (W) /B1E
— MM - BB MR
—AEREER
—FBHA
—MERX
— T RRE
(BpEm) ik
—EWE S RFBERE

— BN E ZRFRERE
o

—REMERITHERE

—REREZ W

BB LS
—f %
— R S
— Ef MR
— B BER
— ELA R 0B R 2P
—apBE

Net cash generated from operations

REXBEE 2REFH

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2021

Bk P15 75 A A B4
R B

(7,017)
(1,484)
1,092
1,017
(1,324)
(2,041)

28,568

B Bl B R W Rk

BEBELZAS

1,565

37
1,930
8,624

23
45

(192)
3,567

4,212
1,332
(1,097)
(866)
(1,843)
(1,087)
5,780
(1,449)

1,665
909

23,155
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26 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of

Cash Flows (continued)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group's consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows from
financing activities.

As at 1st April 2020 RZZZZFMA—H 32,000

26

B Bl BRI E ()
Pl 26 3 0 2 2 £ MR

TRBNAEERERDEEZRBELZ
BEFEE ERASRIIRSED - B
BRAPELEZRERENIERNAKE
HEReRERANDERMELDZE

EREZAME -

12,005 67,586 111,591

Additions of lease liabilities FAE& &M - 4,263 - 4,263
Financing cash flow BERSRE (7,000) (10,051) (4,218) (21,269)
Interest expense MEefy 547 2,153 2,700
Exchange differences ERER 549 603 1,152
As at 31st March 2021 R-E--F#=HA=+—-H 66,124 98,437
As at 1st April 2019 RZE-NFEA—H 21,245 42 - 75,138 96,425
Adoption of HKFRS 16 RInE BB R EER

21655 = (42) 14,177 - 14,735
Additions of lease liabilities FAE& &L - - 6,256 - 6,256
Financing cash flow MERSRE 10,755 - (8,823) (10,202) (8,270)
Interest expense FIBAX - - 577 2,990 3,567
Exchange differences X ZE%E = = (782) (340) (1,122)
As at 31st March 2020 R-E-EE=HA=+-H 32,000 - 12,005 67,586 111,591
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27 Commitments 27 R
Operating lease receivables — where the Group is the AR LR SR L — A 4 T A s M AL
lessor A
As at 31st March 2021 and 2020, the Group have future minimum KRB FR T _FTF=A=1+—
lease receivables under non-cancellable leases with third parties. B REAEEERFE=FFIZ 2T
HEE ARBETRBERINRERE
FEUFRIE -

Minimum operating lease payments KB SR EYROE
receivable:
No later than one year —FR

Later than one year and no later than five years —&F#£BRER

Operating lease receivables represent rentals receivable by the USRI RIBIEREEGRHEEY
Group for its investment properties. Lease periods are two years. ¥R S - HEAAHME -
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28 Related Party Transactions 28

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the
Group had the following significant related party transactions

38 Wk N\ 32 5
B EHBRREBBDFREEN
ARERFRBRTATEABHAL

during the year:

(a) Particulars of significant transactions between the Group and  (a)
related parties are summarized below:

X5

AEBEBERATETZIEARSFIE
BT

Rental expenses to M-Bar Limited

%fM-Bar Limited 2 A4 552

(i), (v)

Sales to PC Supply Limited and its HETEEHEAR

subsidiaries (“PC Supply Group”) UNGIDSEAN) =N

([EERER]) (ii)

Purchases from PC Supply Group WEBPEDMFE (i)
Commission income received from 2 U E Clover Display Limited

Clover Display Limited ZARsWA
Management fee paid to PC Supply EXMEEREE

Group ZERE

Notes: fE -

(i) M-Bar Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mobicon Electronic
Supplies Company Limited, a company beneficially owned by Dr. Hung Kim
Fung, Measure (30%), Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl (30%), Mr. Hung Ying Fung
(20%) and Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix (20%), directors and substantial
shareholders of the Company. The lease agreements with M-Bar Limited
were entered into at terms agreed between the contracting parties.

(ii) PC Supply Limited is owned as to 99.99% and 0.01% by A Plus Computer
Shop Limited (“A Plus”) and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl respectively. A Plus is
beneficially owned by Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (30%), Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl (30%), Mr. Hung Ying Fung (20%) and Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung,
Allix (20%), directors and substantial shareholders of the Company. Sales
to and purchases from PC Supply Group were conducted in the normal
course of business at terms as agreed between the contracting parties.

(iii) Commission income received from Clover Display Limited was conducted in
the normal course of business at terms as agreed between the contracting
parties.

(i) M-Bar Limited £ Mobicon Electronic Supplies
Company Limited 2 2 &M B AR © &2
RAIBAARREEFRFERF AR EF LT
(30%) * 15 B 22 £(30%) ~ HEE LA
(20%) R t5 Bl BR S E(20%) B G - H
M-Bar Limited 5] 32 2 #0 & 13 Ty R FT 40 %
T E ZARFRETAL »

(ii) BEPBRARNDHAEBBEKEAR
AR BEBEME]) RBRELTHES
99.99% [ 0.01%# = - EABMIEHAR
RIEERTZREAMEE(30%) - 15
BUE LT (30%) ~ T E ST A (20%) 15 B
BEEQ%ERSESR - BEBNPEEE
TZHERRERZHN —REBKBRE
FIRET RIS 0 RE Z AGRGELT ©

(i) 2 4¢Ex Clover Display Limited 2 & U A TS

N REBBREPRINSETHEZE
FRULER

ERNEMERAT - —B=-—FFH
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28 Related Party Transactions (continued) 28

Notes: (continued)

(iv) Management fee paid to PC Supply Group was conducted in the normal
course of business at terms as agreed between the contracting parties.

(v) During the year ended 31st March 2020, these transactions constituted
continuing connected transactions as defined in the Listing Rules.

(b) Included in other receivables of the Group as at 31st March 2021 (b)
were rental deposits paid to M-Bar Limited of approximately
HK$464,000 (2020: HK$464,000).

(c) Included in other payables and accruals of the Group were  (c)
amounts due to minority shareholders of certain subsidiaries of
approximately HK$5,277,000 (2020: HK$4,066,000). The amounts
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

(d) Key management compensation (d)

Short-term employee benefits EHEE T
Post-employment benefits B2 12 A

BN LA 5 )

BeE - ()

(iv) EXNEEREEEBEIR —RE
BBRP IR ORI HEZ HRRZAT -

(v) RBE_Z_ZTF=A=+—-HL#F
E'Z%i%%ﬁiﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁZﬁ
BEERS -

MNR-B-—F=A=+—H0 KA&£EH
& UK FOIE B 1 B 2 A M-Bar LimitedZ
SRS L6408 T(Z T T F :
464,000/ 7T ) °

ZSE@%MEH RIERERTEABERE
5T WE QR D EARE R IA 45,277,000
,%n(_7_7¢ 4,066,000 7T) - B
FEAEER S REBREREE-

400

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in Note 13 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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29 Business Combination — Acquisition of
Subsidiaries

(a) On 2nd April 2019, the Group acquired 65% equity interests
in Swan Electrical (Pty) Limited at a cash consideration of
approximately HK$7,576,000. The principal business of Swan is
trading and distribution of electrical products and components in
South Africa.

Net assets acquired:

29 B OF — WS A H
(a) R-ZZBE—HEFMWA—-H  NEFBWKEB

Swan Electrical (Pty) Limited 65% X AAE %S
I8 & KRB A7,576,00008 7T ° Swanz =&
¥BREEIBEERDHBEFEMET
(3K

WHEFR S & EFE -

Property, plant and equipment ME - BB REE 46
Inventories TE 12,112
Trade receivables FEURE 5 BR R 3121
Other receivables and deposits H el B Mg S 1,837
Cash and bank balances Be KBTS 597
Trade payables EREBER (3.824)
Other payables and accruals Hfth A 5R0E R FE AT B B (232)
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFTIS LB & (96)
Deferred tax liabilities ELFIAA E (2.241)
Total identifiable assets acquired WRERTIS PR B E4ME 11,320
Less: Cash consideration o IReRE (7,576)

3,744
Non-controlling interests FEPERR A (3,962)
Goodwill P (218)

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:

WP 2 BB R FE

Cash consideration paid BERBRSRE (7,576)
Cash and bank balances acquired WEATS IR & RIRITHE B 597
(6,979)

The goodwill is attributable to the anticipated profitability and
operating synergies from combining the operation of the Group and
Swan. None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for tax
purpose.

EEERBEREE R Swanz ¥4 017
A mRz BN REERR KRG
AEM - RHMAREL TR -

ERNEMERAT - —B=-—FFH
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29

Business Combination — Acquisition of
Subsidiaries (continued)

As at the date of acquisition, the fair values of the trade
receivables and other receivables were their gross contractual
amounts. None of them was expected to be uncollectible.

Included in the loss for the year ended 31st March 2020 is
approximately HK$216,000 profit attributable to the additional
business generated by Swan. Revenue for the year ended 31st
March 2020 includes approximately HK$30,391,000 generated by
Swan.

Had the acquisition been completed on 2nd April 2019, the
Group's revenue for the year would have been approximately
HK$491,636,000 and loss for the year would have been
approximately HK$3,033,000. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of
revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 2nd
April 2019, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2021
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EH A OF — WU S A E )

RUE B - BUWE SR E R
REZAFER/EANBESE - HHA
B IRE AR E -

HE_ZT-_ZTF=-A=+—HILFEZ
BB R IESwan T A 2R 2 $TIE %75 2 4
FHA216,0008TT - BE—T—_FTF=F1
=+ —HIEFEZWEBEHR A Swanz
e 25 4930,391,0007 7T ©

WEBEEECR -_T—ALENA=-A®
B AR5 B 2 F AU ES 1% 49 5491,636,000
BT R FNEE K 49/53,033,0008 7T © it
BELZERERFACAH T —F
BERMiHMEBEEER -2 —NLFENA
ZHREK @ NEBEAEE S W
RS - T EIEARRERZTE
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29 Business Combination — Acquisition of 29 % & 0F — B 2 ¥ (2)

Subsidiaries (continued)

(b) On 1st February 2020, the Group acquired 75% equity interests  (b) R-_ZE_-F
in Switch Technique KZN Proprietary Limited (“Switch”) at a
cash consideration of approximately HK$2,367,000. The principal
business of Switch is trading and distribution of electrical products
and components in South Africa.

FZA—H AEEKE
Switch Technique KZN Proprietary Limited
([ Switch ])75% i A f &% -
2,367,000 7T ° Switchz £ B ¥ 7% A7
FEBERDHEEFEMBIITH ©

ReENR

Property, plant and equipment ME - BE KR 519
Inventories s 4,172
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BRE 3,582
Other receivables and deposits H At U FRIE K i e 85
Cash and bank balances e RIBITRER 885
Trade payables e B BEER (3.010)
Other payables and accruals H ) JE A RRE I B R T B (1.125)
Current income tax liabilities BT IS B fE (386)
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIBAE (430)
Total identifiable assets acquired IS r s R B E A 4,292
Less: Cash consideration o RERE (2,367)
1,925
Non-controlling interests IR (1,059)
Gain on bargain purchase SEURE 2 Wizs 866
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: IR FTEE 2 RS F5E -
Cash consideration paid ENBERE (2,367)
Cash and bank balances acquired WEE TS IR & MIRTT4E 8 885
(1,482)

As at the date of acquisition, the fair values of the trade
receivables and other receivables were their gross contractual
amounts. None of them was expected to be uncollectible.

RUE B - BUWE SR E R
REZAFER/EANBEESE - YA
BAIRE AR o

ERNEMERAT - —B=-—FFH
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29

Business Combination — Acquisition of
Subsidiaries (continued)

Included in the loss for the year ended 31st March 2020 is
approximately HK$817,000 loss attributable to the additional
business generated by Switch. Revenue for the year includes
approximately HK$4,669,000 generated by Switch.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1st April 2019, the
Group's revenue for the year would have been approximately
HK$483,262,000 and loss for the year would have been
approximately HK$2,962,000. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of
revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1st
April 2019, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2021
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EH A OF — WU S A E )

HE_ T - ZTF-A=+—BILFEE
B EFESWIitch AT 5 2R 2 BTG ¥ 75 2 BB LY
817,000 7T ° F AUz B 5 2R B Switch 2
UL %5 494,669,000 7T °

WEBEEHER-_TE—NLFOA—ARE
R ANERE 2 F AR ES 1% 49 45483,262,000
BT R FNEBIE4) 52,962,00078 7T © 1t
BESLEEHERKBZA X T—F
BERMEEBEEER-_Z—NLFHNA
—HEX @ NEBFAEE S W
REEEE - T BIERRKREREZTE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R Mk
30 Statement of Financial Position of the

(a)

Company and Movement of Reserves of the

Company
As at 31st March 2021

30 / UL e AR 2

Statement of financial position of the Company (a)
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AT ZIRE 100,640 100,640
100,640 100,640
Current assets RBEE
Amount due from a subsidiary R — R b B A Bl EIE 3,418 5,210
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTEE R 154 84
3,572 5,294
Total assets EEHE 104,212 105,934
Current liabilities b =R
Other payables and accruals HibpeftaoE st & A 22 22
22 27
Net current assets REEEEE 3,550 5,272
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERREBERE 104,190 105,912
Net assets BESE 104,190 105,912
Capital and reserves attributable to AABERBEEA
the equity holders of the Company FE(LRR AN 4
Share capital [N 20,000 20,000
Reserves & 84,190 85,912
Total equity RSB 104,190 105,912
The statement of financial position of the Company were approved RARZHBMRARERZZEZ_—F X
and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 29th June AZ+hBEEESHEREETE
2021 and signed on its behalf by: WHTIEEREESSESE
HUNG KIM FUNG, MEASURE YEUNG MAN YI, BERYL
HBl%E BE
Chairman Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
FE BIFEFETHAAL

BERAEEERLAR - —B=—FFR

145
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Ao T A 2 A P

30 Statement of Financial Position of the 30 A2 &) B %K 0% KA L 7
Company and Movement of Reserves of the Z b e
Company (continued)
As at 31st March 2021 (continued) R-FZ—H=A=Z+—H@#)

(b)  Movement of reserves of the Company (b) AR EZREEEE

Balance at 1st April 2019 RZE—NF

MA—B &% 16,706 67,097 7113 90,916
Loss for the year ERER - - (3,004) (3,004)
Dividends es - - (2,000) (2,000)
Balance at 31st March 2020 NZB-TE

—A=t+—Hz&# 16,706 67,097 2,109 85,912
Balance at 1st April 2020 RZE-ZF

mMA—B & 16,706 67,097 2,109 85,912
Profit for the year F X% - - 278 278
Dividends %= - - (2,000) (2,000)
Balance at 31st March 2021 R=-ZEZ=-—-4=8

=t+—-Rz#&H 16,706 67,097 387 84,190
Representing: K& :
2021 final dividend “E-—FRERE 1,000
Others Hi (613)

387
Note: fEE -

Contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal value of the
ordinary shares issued by the Company and the net asset value of subsidiaries
acquired through exchanges of shares pursuant to the reorganization which took
place on 18th April 2001.

BABRBREARBMBTEERZEE  BIRE
“EE-FNATNBETZEARBRG G
MBRARZEEFEIERE -
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Financial Summary

SA B L

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out below:

Results

AEEBEREMRFEZEAMEEREESR

BEMEHIILT

e

Revenue Wz

Profit/(loss) before income tax BT SR AT A
(E#E)

Income tax expense FTE#FAY

Profit/(loss) for the year FREF/ (E]R)

Attributable to: A

Equity holders of the Company A Bz EHAEA

Non-controlling interests IR

456,369

20,539
(1,950)

18,589

(VALY
6,438

18,589

461,245 479,396 546,672 627,771
1,565 1,758 (5,929) 6,493
(4,814) (4,672) (5,080) (5,241)
(3,249) (2,914) (11,009) 1,252
(5,729) (7.690) (17,132) (3,763)
2,480 4,776 6,123 5015
(3,249) (2,914) (11,009) 1,252

ERNEMERAT - —B=-—FFH
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S B 2L

Assets and Liabilities Mk afE

Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 29,107 27,314 30,160 16,917 18,461
Right-of-use assets FREEE 6,937 11,755 - - -
Intangible assets EEE 92 63 - - -
Investment properties EME 4,623 4,518 4,805 - -
Goodwill g - 17 - - -
Other receivables H el EoR 2,688 3,360 4,032 4,704 5,376
Current assets REEE 291,032 259,174 260,075 276,348 293,191
Total assets BEEHE 334,479 306,355 299,072 297,969 317,028
Current liabilities mEBE (156,833) (158,383) (139,956) (129,776) (135,855)
Net current assets REBEETE 134,199 100,791 120,119 146,572 157,336

Total assets less current EEAERARBER

liabilities 171,646 147,972 159,116 168,193 181,173
Non-current liabilities ERBERE (4,771) (6,488) (28) (43) (52)
Net assets EEFE 172,875 141,484 159,088 168,150 181,121
Capital and reserves ERATEBFEA

attributable to the EERAR #E

equity holders of

the Company
Share capital R A 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Reserves e 105,155 86,284 104,450 122,107 138,706

125,155 106,284 124,450 142,107 158,706
Non-controlling interests FERER 41,120 35,200 34,638 26,043 22,415
Total equity R 172,875 141,484 159,088 168,150 181,121
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